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Profiles of Directors and Senior Executive

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. KONG, Chi-ming, aged 45, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since July 2005 and was appointed as Deputy Chairman of
the Company in November of the same year. He also holds position as
director in a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Kong holds a
Bachelor Degree of Business Administration from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong, a Master Degree of Arts in Quantitative Analysis for
Business and a Master Degree of Business Administration from the City
University of Hong Kong. He has over 18 years of experience in the
management and development of property projects in the Mainland
China.

Mr. LEUNG, Wing-pong, aged 47, has been an Executive Director of
the Company since October 2002 and was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer of the Company in July 2005. He also holds position as director
and secretary in a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Leung is
a member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute. He was registered as a
responsible officer of a securities firm, a futures firm and a finance firm in
Hong Kong with Securities and Futures Commission. He has over 21 years

of experience in the area of internal audit.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. David CHAIN, Chi-woo, aged 60, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since September 2004. He is also
a member of audit committee and remuneration committee of the
Company. Dr. Chain is a registered medical practitioner and started private
practice since 1978. He is a graduate of The University of Hong Kong.
Dr. Chain was appointed as a vice chairman of Causeway Bay District
Scout Council from 1986 to 1992. He was also a member of Kowloon
West District Advisory Committee of The Hongkong Bank Foundation
District Community Programme from 2000 to 2001.
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Mr. LAM, Yat-fai, aged 43, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since December 2003. He is also the chairman
of audit committee and a member of remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. Lam is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising). He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Lam worked with Kwan Wong Tan & Fong and Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu for over 10 years. He has over 19 years of experience in
auditing, taxation, corporate finance and accounting. Mr. Lam is also an
independent non-executive director of Oriental Press Group Limited,
Yunnan Enterprises Holdings Limited and New Smart Energy Group
Limited, the shares of all of which are listed on the Main Board of The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. LEUNG, Yun-fai, aged 51, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since November 2003. He is also the chairman
of remuneration committee and a member of audit committee of the
Company. Mr. Leung is a director of a financial consulting firm in Hong
Kong. He holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration from
Newport University in the United States of America. Mr. Leung is a
member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute. He has over 20 years
of auditing and accounting experience with Kwan Wong Tan & Fong
and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. Mr. Leung is also an independent non-
executive director of China Premium Lifestyle Enterprise, Inc., the shares
of which are listed on the Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board of the United

States of America.

SENIOR EXECUTIVE

Mr. LAM, Kwong-wai, aged 53, has been the Group Financial Controller
of the Company since November 2003 and appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company from January 2007. Mr. Lam is also the Group
Financial Controller and the Company Secretary of Chinese Estates
Holdings Limited (the holding company of the Company) and Chi Cheung
Investment Company, Limited (a fellow subsidiary of the Company).
He is a qualified accountant and holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the University of Warwick, United Kingdom. Mr. Lam

has over 31 years of experience in auditing, finance and accounting.
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Chairman’s Statement

TRERH/ES

I am pleased to present the results of G-Prop (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the "Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2008 (the "Year") to the shareholders of the

Company.

RESULTS

The Group recorded a loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
of HK$4,854,000 (2007: profit of HK$15,193,000) for the Year, it was
mainly due to decrease in fair value on investment properties, increase
in effective interest expense on convertible bonds and exchange loss on
floating rate notes. During the year ended 31 December 2007, there was
a gain on disposal of an intangible asset of HK$11,865,000. The basic
and diluted loss per share are HKO.24 cents (2007: earnings per share of
HK1.49 cents) and HKO.24 cents (2007: earnings per share of HK1.39

cents) respectively.

DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors of the Company (the "Board”) has not
recommended the payment of final and interim dividend for the Year
(2007: Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed from 25 May 2009 to 27 May
2009, both days inclusive. For the purpose of ascertaining the members'
entittement to the attendance of the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company, all share transfers documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's Branch
Registrar and Transfer Office in Hong Kong, namely Tricor Secretaries
Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen's Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not later that 4:30 p.m. on 22 May 2009.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group has ceased to participate in the methanol
and acetic acid projects and was principally engaged in the businesses of

property investment, investment and finance.
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TRBES

BUSINESS REVIEW (cont'd)

Property Investment

Rentals from investment properties continued to be one of the major
sources of our income. The Group currently owns 31 carparking spaces
with 5 adjoining spaces, and a carport basement situated in prime
locations. During the Year, the relevant occupancy rate was approximately
92.76% with rental income of approximately HK$1.9 million. The rental
income had decreased 31.15% as compared to last year due to the
disposal of Chung Kiu Godown Building in late 2007. If excluded the
disposed properties, the rental income has an increase of approximately
1.8 times as compared to last year.

Cessation of the Methanol and Acetic Acid Projects

In 2007, the Group commenced the methanol project by acquisition
of a company in the PRC for manufacture of methanol products. In
addition, the Group announced to participate in the acetic acid project of
construction of acetic acid factory and production and sale of acetic acid
in January 2008. However, due to the capital market worsened by the
credit crisis which has led to a more difficult environment for the Group
to raise additional capital for the development of the methanol and acetic
acid projects in the medium to long term, the Group has in February
2008 decided to cease to take part in the said projects. The cessations
were completed in 2008.

Investment and Finance

In June 2008, the Group had acquired various floating rate notes in the
principal amount of approximately EUR3.8 million and US$16.5 million
with date of maturity between 2011 to 2014 as available-for-sale financial
assets for long-term investment purpose which would generate relatively
stable income for the Group. Interest income of approximately HK$4.8
million has been gained during the Year.

Coupled with the shrinking interest returns, in order to secure a more
reasonably profitable but secured return other than keeping the idle
cash as bank deposits, the Company (as the lender) has entered into
a facility agreement on 4 November 2008 with Fancy Mark Limited (as
the borrower), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chinese Estates Holdings
Limited (“Chinese Estates”), and Chinese Estates (as the guarantor) for
a three-year revolving loan facility of up to HK$200 million. The loan had
been approved by the independent shareholders of the Company at the
special general meeting held on 12 December 2008. As at 31 December
2008, the Company has advanced HK$136 million to Fancy Mark Limited
at the interest rate of HIBOR plus 1% per annum. The loan is repayable
on demand upon serving not less than one month's prior notice to Fancy
Mark Limited.
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Chairman’s Statement

TRERH/ES

OTHER INFORMATION

Redemption of the Zero Coupon Convertible Bonds Due 2010

The Company has on 25 October 2007 issued the zero coupon
convertible bonds due 2010 with the principal amount of
HK$180,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds") for financing the methanol
project. After cessation of participating in the methanol project during the
Year, all the Convertible Bonds were fully redeemed on 31 October 2008

upon request by bondholders, and cancelled accordingly.

PROSPECTS

After cessation of the methanol and acetic acid projects, the Group
will focus on property investment, investment and finance businesses.
Albeit the Hong Kong property rental market in the near future would
be challenging under the weakened economic prospects and declined
property prices, we anticipate rental of carparking spaces would have
relatively less influence. In addition, with the loan to Chinese Estates
group of companies, the Company has secured a reliable source of

income from its holding company.

The Company will continue to identify new potential projects or
investment opportunities suitable for the Group in order to increase the

shareholder value.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express our gratitude to the
shareholders for their continued support and our fellow directors and staff

for their contribution to the Company.

On Behalf of the Board
Kong, Chi-ming
Deputy Chairman

Hong Kong, 11 March 2009
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RESULTS

Continuing Operations

Turnover for the Year was HK$6,790,000 (2007: HK$2,812,000),
an increase of HK$3,978,000 or 1.4 times when compared with last
year. Gross profit for the Year amounted to HK$6,551,000 (2007:
HK$2,498,000), a 1.6 times increase as compared with last year. The
increase in turnover and gross profit was the result in the interest income
from floating rate notes of HK$4,835,000 (2007: Nil).

For property leasing, the rental income dropped to HK$1,916,000 (2007:
HK$2,782,000), it was mainly due to the disposal of Chung Kiu Godown
Building in 2007. Included in the current year result was a decrease in
fair value on investment properties of HK$3,700,000 (2007: gain of
HK$1,950,000).

Finance cost recorded an increase of 3.6 times to HK$9,893,000
(2007: HK$2,169,000) when compared with last year, which was the
effective interest expense on convertible bonds. Upon the redemption of

convertible bonds, a gain of HK$8,281,000 was recognised in the Year.

Exchange loss included in administrative expenses of HK$5,744,000
(2007: nil) was recorded upon conversion of foreign currency floating rate

notes to Hong Kong dollars.

Discontinued Operation

On 1 February 2008, the Company entered into a conditional agreement
with Fame Ascent Investments Limited to dispose of the operation
in production and sale of methanol (the “Methanol Project”) for
approximately HK$183,699,000. The disposal was completed on 25
July 2008. Following the disposal, the results of Methanol Project was
reported as a discontinued operation and presented separately in the
consolidated income statement in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued

Operations”.

Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company

For the current year, the Group recorded a loss attributable to
equity holders of the Company of HK$4,854,000 (2007: profit of
HK$15,193,000), it was mainly due to decrease in fair value on
investment properties, increase in effective interest expense on
convertible bonds and exchange loss on floating rate notes. In last year
there was a gain on disposal of an intangible asset of HK$11,865,000.
The basic and diluted loss per share are HK0.24 cents (2007: earnings
per share of HK1.49 cents) and HK0.24 cents (2007: earnings per share
of HK1.39 cents) respectively.

KEE 7 2 ¥%56,790,0008 T (—2E+

12,812,000/ 7T ) * 8 & F 1 103,978,000/
T .45 o RFE 2 EHNR6,551,0008 7T (=
T T +4:2,498,0008 L) - REFILIN.6
B-EEBREMBEMRAREBZEERY
F B4 A4,8350008 7 (T LF &) -

ERERE - HeWATEE916,000% T
—EETEF:2,782,0008L) FERAZER

—ETLFHEFBERREMB -RNFEE

BERIEREME 2 A FER 23,700,000 T
ZETF 251,950,000 L) °

R F SRS M T5 AL 49,893,000/ L (ZEF+
% :2,169,000/8 7T ) - A F I N3.665 - M &
BRARBIRRES 2 ERFEXH -RER
AR EFH 1% - AN 8,281,000/ 7T

o

B

S ATTER X 2 B 5 E5185,744,0008 T (=
THF E)BERINE T EZBRER AT A
E.Eo

BRIEEEXTE
RZZZENF AR ARARZAREEGR

AN AR — 19 B &M 1 7% LA 49183,699,0007%8
THEFERMEETRERER ([FEERH]) %
HESHEERZZEENFELAZTRATK-
REER FERBEBZEECI ADKIEEE
5 WARBE BV HREERFESH [1FED
EZRBDEERDKRILEEER] RERE K
mRBIE

KAGREHEEAEWLERE

REE  REEFBRRTRANRE ARLES
4,854,000 7T (ZEZ 4 )& 15,193,000
Br)  EBREBEMEZAFERD WA
BiEHFcERF SIS MR T EREZER
BB AF HEEFEEZWER11,865000
BT BIREARREEEE D R R0.248 (=
EEF FREFNA9EMW) X0.245 (=
T FBRAEFI9EM) -



10

G-PROP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £ E ¥ AR A A

Financial Operation Review MK EEE
RESULTS (cont'd) FE (&)

Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company (cont’d)

If the major non-cash items of loss of HK$5,312,000 (2007: gain
of HK$11,646,000) are excluded,
equity holders of the Company will become HK$458,000 (2007:
HK$3,547,000). Both adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share are
HKO0.02 cents.

the core profit attributable to

The major non-cash items included (a) cost of the effective interest
expense on convertible bonds of HK$9,893,000 (2007: HK$2,169,000)
and loss on fair value change on investment properties of HK$3,700,000
(2007: gain of HK$1,950,000);
convertible bonds of HK$8,281,000 in the current year and gain on

and (b) gain on redemption of

disposal of an intangible asset of HK$11,865,000 in last year.

NET ASSET VALUE

As at 31 December 2008,
HK$297,378,000 (2007: HK$365,659,000), a drop of HK$68,281,000 or

18.7% when compared with last year. Such drop was caused by (a) the

the Group's total net asset was

decrease in convertible bonds equity reserve of HK$30,234,000, which
was realised upon redemption of convertible bonds; (b) the decrease in
fair value of available-for-sale financial assets of HK$31,038,000; and (c)

the loss retained for the Year.

Net asset value per share as at 31 December 2008 was HK$0.15 (2007:
HK$0.18).

INVESTMENT AND FINANCE

During the Year, the Group acquired various long term floating rate notes
(the "FRN") in principal amount of EUR3,800,000 and US$16,500,000
as available-for-sale financial assets. The denominated currencies of the
FRN are European dollars and United States dollars and the maturity
dates are between 2011 to 2014. The interest rates are calculated mainly
with reference to the respective country's LIBOR. Further the Group
made a short term three-year revolving loan to Chinese Estates group of
HK$136,000,000 at HIBOR plus 19% per annum. No hedging for interest

rate and foreign currency were subsisted during the Year.

As at 31 December 2008, the carrying amount of the FRN amounted
to HK$127,704,000 and the loan amounted to HK$136,000,000
representing 42.4% and 45.1% of the total assets of the Group at the

year end respectively.
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Financial Operation Review MK & EE
EQUITY A &

The number of issued ordinary shares as at 31 December 2008 and 31
December 2007 were 2,028,255,008.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 31 October 2008, the Company, upon the request of the
bondholders, had redeemed the zero coupon convertible bonds due
2010 (the "Bonds") with principal amount of HK$180,000,000 in full
at par value by cash. The Bonds so redeemed had been cancelled
simultaneously. As at 31 December 2008, the Company has no

outstanding bonds.

DEBT AND EQUITY RATIO

The Group did not have any borrowings as at 31 December 2008
(2007: outstanding convertible bonds with principal amount of
HK$180,000,000).

No debt to equity ratio as at 31 December 2008 (2007: 39.3%, which
was expressed as a percentage of carrying amount of the liability
component of convertible bonds of HK$143,678,000 over the net assets
of HK$365,659,000 as at 31 December 2007). Cash and bank balances
as at 31 December 2008 was approximately HK$5,442,000 (2007:
HK$354,015,000). The majority of the Group's income for the Year was
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars and no
hedging for non-Hong Kong dollars assets or investments have been

made during the Year.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007, no assets were
pledged by the Group to secure any banking facilities and the Group did

not have any obligations under banking facility documentation.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2008 and 31 December 2007.
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Financial Operation Review

o 5 45 4 [ R

FINANCIAL AND INTEREST INCOME/EXPENSES

Interest income was included in turnover, other operating income and
loss for the Year from discontinued operation. Interest income was
HK$9,632,000 for the Year, representing an increase of 73.2% from
that of 2007 (HK$5,562,000), it is mainly due to the interest income
from FRN (2007: nil). The finance cost mainly included effective interest
expense on convertible bonds of HK$9,893,000 (2007: HK$2,169,000),

which was a non-cash expense during the Year.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

As at 31 December 2008, the Group employed a total of 1 staff excluding
the Directors (31 December 2007: 7 staff). The reduction of staff was
due to the disposal of the PRC Company during the Year. Total staff cost
for the Year was approximately HK$1,625,000 (2007: HK$825,000).
Remuneration package comprised salary and year-end bonus based on
individual merits. The Company had adopted share option scheme since
15 February 2002 (the “2002 Scheme"). Details of the 2002 Scheme will
be disclosed in the consolidated financial statements for the Year. There
were no outstanding options at the beginning and at the end of the year.

No options were granted, exercised, cancelled and lapsed during the Year.

PROPERTY VALUATION

A property valuation has been carried out by Norton Appraisals Limited,
independent qualified professional surveyors, in respect of the Group's
investment properties held as at 31 December 2008 and that valuation
was used in preparing this year's financial statements. The Group's
investment properties were valued HK$27,300,000 as at 31 December
2008 (2007: HK$31,000,000), a decrease in fair value of approximately
HK$3,700,000 was recognised in the consolidated income statement for
the Year.
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OBJECTIVE

The Board of Directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) of the Company
together with its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) is committed to
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance so as to ensure
better transparency and protection of shareholders’ interest in general.
The Board endeavours to ensure effective self-regulatory practices,
to maintain sound internal control system and to absorb high calibre

members to the Board.

The purpose of this Corporate Governance Report is to present to
shareholders how the Company has applied the principles in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) under Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout
the year ended 31 December 2008 (the “Year").

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Since 2005, the Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Code to enhance corporate governance in the interests of the Company

and its shareholders.

The Company has applied the principles of the Code and complied
throughout the Year with all the code provisions and some of the
recommended best practices set out in the Code, save for the following

deviation:

. Under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.
The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company (the
“INED(s)") are not appointed for any specific term. However,
they are already subject to retirement by rotation and eligible for
re-election at the Company's annual general meetings at least once

every three years in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.

The code provisions under A.2 of the Code stipulate the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer. The Company's Chairman resigned in 2007
and the vacancy has not been filled up, the Deputy Chairman of the
Company has temporarily taken up the role of the Chairman since then.
Accordingly, the Board considers that the code provisions under A.2 of the

Code have been complied with.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEw

The Board is responsible for directing the Group, formulating overall
strategy, monitoring operating and financial performance of the Group
and overseeing the performance of the management. Each Director acts
in good faith for the best interest of the Company. The Directors are
collectively and individually responsible to the Company for the manner in
which the affairs of the Company are managed, controlled and operated.
They had devoted sufficient time and attention to the Company's affairs
during the Year.

Structure
The Board currently comprises two Executive Directors and three INEDs
which represent more than one-third of the Board as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Kong, Chi-ming (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Leung, Wing-pong (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. David Chain, Chi-woo

Mr. Lam, Yat-fai

Mr. Leung, Yun-fai

The Directors’ biographies are available on the Company's website.
There is no relationship among members of the Board and in particular,
between the Deputy Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer (the
"CEQ").

At least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualification as
required by the Stock Exchange. The Company has received from each
INED an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the INEDs are
independent.

Directors (including the INEDs) are not appointed for any specific term.

According to The G-Prop (Holdings) Limited Company Act, 1991 for
incorporating the Company as an exempted company under the laws
of Bermuda in 1991, it is stipulated that any chairman and managing
director should not be required to retire by rotation. As the Executive
Director and CEO, Mr. Leung, Wing-pong is willing to voluntarily retire from
his directorship at future annual general meetings of the Company at least
once every three years by following the requirements under the Bye-laws,
and being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the relevant annual
general meetings.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont'd)

Structure (cont’d)
Every Director is therefore subject to retirement by rotation either under
the Bye-laws or voluntarily, and eligible for re-election at the annual

general meetings of the Company at least once every three years.

Assistance to Directors in Decision Making

Throughout their period in office, the Directors have been informed
of the Group's business, the competitive and regulatory environments
in which it operates and other changes affecting the Group and the
industry it operates in as a whole. They have also been advised on
appointment of their legal and other duties and obligations as directors of
a listed company and updated on changes to the legal and governance

requirements of the Group and upon themselves as the Directors.

The Directors are given access to independent professional advice at the
Company's expense, when they deem it is necessary in order for them to

carry out their responsibilities from time to time.

To enhance the Directors’ consciousness on the importance of the
directors’ duties, a “Non-statutory Guidelines on Directors’ Duties” in
which the general principles a director should follow in the performance
of his functions and exercise of his powers was distributed to the

Directors.

Conduct of Meetings

The Directors are consulted and properly briefed for matters to be
included in the meeting agenda. The Board is supplied with relevant
information as well as reports relating to operational and financial
performance of the Group before each regular Board meeting. At least
14 days' notice of a regular Board meeting is given to all Directors to
provide them the opportunity to attend. Board papers are dispatched to
all Directors at least 3 days before the meeting to ensure that they have
sufficient time to review the same and will be adequately prepared for
the meeting. Senior management is invited to the meeting to address the
Board members' queries. This enables the Board to have pertinent data
and insight for a comprehensive and informed evaluation as part of the

Board's decision-making purpose.

The Deputy Chairman has delegated the responsibility to the Company
Secretary for drawing up and approving the meeting agenda for each
Board meeting, taking into account of any matters proposed by the other

Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont'd)

Conduct of Meetings (cont’d)

The proceedings of the Board at its meetings are generally monitored
by the Deputy Chairman who ensures that sufficient time is allocated
for discussion and consideration of each item on the agenda. Equal
opportunities are given to the Directors to express their views and

concerns.

Each Director has to declare his interest and to abstain from voting on
any board resolution in which he or any of his associates has a material

interest pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws and the laws of Bermuda.

All Directors have full access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure the Board's procedures, rules and regulations are
followed. Draft and final versions of minutes of each Board meeting in
sufficient details are sent to the Directors for comments and records
within reasonable time after the meeting is held. The minutes of Board
meetings and meetings of the Board committees are kept by the
Company Secretary, which are open for inspection by the Directors on

reasonable notice.

Four regular Board meetings were held on 7 March, 11 July, 5 August
and 25 November and two ad hoc Board meetings were held on 16
January and 20 November for the Year. The Company Secretary, Qualified
Accountant and the Company's senior management had attended the
Board meetings to report matters arising from corporate governance, risk
management, statutory compliance, accounting, finance and business. The
individual attendance of each Director at the Board meetings held during

the Year is as follows:

No. of

Board meetings

attended/held

(Percentage of

Directors attendance in total)

Executive Directors

6/6 (100%)

6/6 (100%)
1/2 (50%)

Mr. Kong, Chi-ming (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Leung, Wing-pong (CEO)
Mr. Chan, Wing-kwan (resigned on 19 May 2008)

Mr. Chang, Wing-yiu (resigned on 19 May 2008) 1/2 (50%)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. David Chain, Chi-woo

Mr. Lam, Yat-fai

Mr. Leung, Yun-fai

6/6 (100%)
6/6 (100%)
6/6 (100%)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont'd)

Works Performed

During the Year, besides attending the Board meetings to consider and
make decision on corporate governance, risk management, statutory
compliance, accounting, finance and business matters, the Directors had
brought independent opinion and judgement on Company's strategy,
performance and standards of conduct; had taken the lead where
potential conflicts of interests arose; had served on Board committees;
had ensured that the Board maintained high standards of financial and
other mandatory reporting; and had provided adequate checks and
balance to safeguard the interests of shareholders in general and the

Company as a whole.

During the Year, the INEDs had actively participated in the Board
meetings, brought independent judgement and given their comments
on the information or reports submitted to the meetings. The INEDs
constituting the members of the independent board committees also
considered ad hoc important transactions including the general offer,
major transaction and connected transactions of the Company during the

Year.

Besides attending the Board or committee meetings, in order to make
timely decision and have effective implementation of the Company's
policy and practice, the Board had also adopted written resolutions signed

by all directors to make decision on corporate affairs from time to time.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the "Model Code") as a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors. In addition, the Company has a separate written
code of conduct on terms no less exacting than the Model Code for the
relevant employees of the Company who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information in respect of their dealings in the

securities of the Company (the “Employees’ Code”).

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors and the relevant employees,
all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code and the relevant employees had complied
with the Employees’ Code regarding securities transactions throughout the

Year.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and CEO are separate and not performed by
the same individual. Mr. Kong, Chi-ming is the Deputy Chairman with
responsibility for overseeing the function of the Board, formulating overall
strategies and policies of the Company. Mr. Leung, Wing-pong is the CEO
with responsibility for the overall business and operation of the Group.
This segregation is clearly established and set out in writing to ensure
a clear distinction between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the

Board and the CEQ's responsibility to manage the Group's business.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established Audit Committee and Remuneration

Committee with defined roles and terms of reference.

Audit Committee

Structure

The Audit Committee has been established with the role to assist the
Board in establishing formal and transparent arrangements for considering
how it will apply the financial reporting and internal control principles and
for maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Company's auditors
(the “Independent Auditors"). It acts in an advisory capacity and makes

recommendations to the Board.

All the Audit Committee members possess diversified industry experience.
The chairman has appropriate professional qualification, accounting or
related financial management expertise as required by the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee comprises all the INEDs, namely:

Mr. Lam, Yat-fai (Chairman)
Dr. David Chain, Chi-woo
Mr. Leung, Yun-fai

Function
The Audit Committee’s terms of reference can be found on the Group's

website.

The major duties of the Audit Committee are summarised below:

) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the Company's Independent Auditors,
review and monitor their independence and objectivity as well as

the effectiveness of the audit process;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (cont'd)

Audit Committee (cont’d)

Function (cont’d)

i) to monitor the integrity of the interim and annual consolidated
financial statements, reports and accounts and quarterly reports
of the Company, and to review any significant financial reporting

judgements contained in them; and

i) to review and ensure the effectiveness of the Company's financial

controls, internal control and risk management systems.

Conduct of Meetings

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice each year. The Company
prepares and delivers an information memorandum that includes
all relevant information about the meetings to the Audit Committee
members at least 3 days prior to such meetings. During the Year, the
Audit Committee members reviewed the information memorandum with
due care and discussed with the Company’s Qualified Accountant, the
Company Secretary and other senior management (if necessary) during

the meetings.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held 3 meetings on 6 March, 1
August and 25 November 2008 respectively with the presence of the
Company's senior management. The Audit Committee members met
and discussed with the Independent Auditors without the presence of
the Company’s senior management in one of the said three meetings.
Minutes drafted by the Company Secretary were circulated to the Audit
Committee members for comments within a reasonable time after each
meeting. Executed minutes were kept by the Company Secretary and
copies of the minutes were sent to the Audit Committee members for

records.

Individual attendance of each committee member at the meetings is as

follows:
No. of meetings
attended/held
(Percentage of
Members attendance in total)

Mr. Lam, Yat-fai (Chairman)
Dr. David Chain, Chi-woo
Mr. Leung, Yun-fai

3/3 (100%)
3/3 (100%)
3/3 (100%)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (cont'd) EE5ZE8T (&)

Audit Committee (cont’d) BEREEE (H)

Works Performed 1Tz T

The works performed by the Audit Committee in the Year are summarized ERZEERNAFERIT 2 TERMMT

below:

) reviewed and considered the Group accounts and financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2007, and interim

accounts for 2008.

i)  reviewed and discussed with the Independent Auditors in respect
of the audit fee for the year 2008; the terms of the engagement
letters; the nature, scope of audit and reporting obligations for the

Year;

i) reviewed and assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's financial controls, internal control and risk management

systems;

iv)  reviewed the corporate governance practices and monitored the

progress of compliance of the Code;

v)  reviewed and approved engagement of non-audit services of
Independent Auditors pursuant to the non-audit services policy of

the Company in place.

On 9 March 2009, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group accounts
and draft financial statements for the Year.

Amendment of Terms of Reference

As a result of implementation of certain amendments to the Listing
Rules effective on 1st January, 2009, the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee have been amended by deleting any reference to the qualified
accountant as it is no longer necessary to have qualified accountant for
a listed company in Hong Kong. Instead, the terms of reference now
requires the Audit Committee to discuss on the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company's accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget. The Audit Committee assists the Board to have effective internal
controls for proper financial reporting, adequate accounting systems and
appropriate human resources to fulfill its continuing financial reporting

obligations.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (cont'd)

Remuneration Committee

Structure

The Remuneration Committee has been established with the role to assist
the Board in reviewing and determining the framework or broad policy
for remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management,
overseeing any major changes in employee benefit structures and

considering other topics as defined by the Board.

The Remuneration Committee comprises all the INEDs, namely:

Mr. Leung, Yun-fai (Chairman)
Dr. David Chain, Chi-woo
Mr. Lam, Yat-fai

Function
The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are as

follows:

i) setting, reviewing and recommending to the Board for approving the

Group's overall remuneration policy and strategy;

i)  setting, reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration
and individual remuneration packages for the Executive Directors
and senior management including terms and conditions of
employment as well as compensation payable due to loss or

termination of office, and dismissal or removal for misconduct; and

i)  recommending to the Board of the remuneration of Non-executive

Directors.

The Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference can be found on the

Group's website.

The Remuneration Committee would consult the Chairman and/or the
CEO about its proposals on remuneration of other Executive Directors and

seek internal and external professional advices if considered necessary.

Conduct of Meeting and Works Performed

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting on 6 March 2008 to
discuss and ratify the year-end discretionary bonus paid to employees of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2007.

FHESS

R

¥FMEZESERY HACRBBEESRF
FEFTEEREREREZHMFTENARRK
R EERERNABZEMNEAES UKE
BESEBETECHMBER-

FHNEZEEeR2BBYIFRTESTER BE
=2

REEEE (L)
EHNEE
MEEELE

B &
FMEEe s EFBREN

) HE BRI REREFTEHEARECE

HE 3 BN BOR Je SR RS

i) ﬂﬂ*ﬁﬂ&m&%%%%%ﬁ%%Z%
B ARBITEERSRERE Z @55
ISR %ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&%#'%&l%
BRELXERIATATEMERESR
REMEEFTIXNZEE: &

i)y FMIFMTEBZHFMAE=TSRHE

BN ZEecBERE TTHEREEH
B

FHEEee R HtNITES ZHMEEHT
EER/FOTBEE TERAEBERERER
NERINREEER

BB RBETZIE
RZZBZNF=ZARA FHEZEEeRTEHE
NHHUBRERTEARAEBER ST LF
ToA=T—HIEFEZFERBBELL-



22

G-PROP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £ E ¥ AR A A

Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMMITTEES (cont'd)

Remuneration Committee (cont’d)

Conduct of Meeting and Works Performed (cont’d)

Individual attendance of each committee member at the meeting is as

follows:
No. of meetings
attended/held
(Percentage of
Members attendance in total)
Mr. Leung, Yun-fai (Chairman) 1/1 (100%)
Dr. David Chain, Chi-woo 1/1 (100%)
Mr. Lam, Yat-fai 1/1 (100%)

The Company prepares and delivers meeting papers that include all
relevant information about the meeting to the Remuneration Committee
members at least 3 days prior to such meeting. Minutes drafted by the
Company Secretary were circulated to the Remuneration Committee
members for comments within a reasonable time after each meeting.
Executed minutes were kept by the Company Secretary and copies of the

minutes were sent to the Remuneration Committee members for records.

Remuneration Policy

As the existing Executive Directors are employees of the subsidiaries of
Chinese Estates Holdings Limited, the Company's holding company, so
they are not entitled to any emoluments of the Company but a nominal
annual remuneration of HK$10,000 approved by the Remuneration

Committee as a reward for their contribution to the Group.

The INEDs are not entitled to any other emoluments for holding office
as the INEDs except for their entittement of an annual remuneration
of HK$90,000 determined by the Board subject to annual review with
reference to their duties and responsibilities as well as the prevailing

market condition.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme since 2002 in order to
attract, retain and motivate talented and recognized staffs, management
and directors of the Group. There were no outstanding options at the
beginning and at the end of the Year and no options were granted,

exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the Year.
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Remuneration Committee (cont’d)

Nomination Committee

No Nomination Committee is established in view of the current business
requirement of the Company. Currently, the Board is responsible
for reviewing its composition, identifying and selecting suitable
Board members, assessing independence of the INEDs, considering
appointment or re-appointment of the Directors and succession planning
for the Directors. The Board shall exercise its power under Bye-law 86(2)
of the Bye-laws of the Company to appoint any person as a director either
to fill as casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board whenever the

business of the Company requires.
MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Executive Directors have defined clear directions on powers of
management and delegate daily management and administration
functions to the management. The functions reserved to the Board and
those delegated to the senior management are reviewed from time to
time. The Company would formalize the division of responsibility between
the Board and the management when the operational requirement of the

Group justifies such division.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng (“HLB") were re-appointed as
the Independent Auditors by shareholders at the 2008 annual general
meeting of the Company. In order to maintain the independence and
objectivity of the Independent Auditors (which for these purposes include
any entity under common control, ownership or management with the
audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party having
knowledge of all relevant information would reasonably conclude as part
of the audit firm nationally or internationally), they will not be engaged for
non-audit work unless it has been pre-approved by the Audit Committee

pursuant to the Company's non-audit services policy.

Independent Auditors were engaged on an ad hoc basis to supply non-
audit services such as the appointment of reporting accountants for
the general offer, major transaction and connected transaction during
the Year. The fundamental policy is to ensure that the engagement
of the Independent Auditors for non-audit services will not harm their
independence or cause any bias on auditing the financial statements of
the Company. During the Year, the fee for engaging Independent Auditors
to carry out reporting accountants works on the general offer, major

transaction and connected transaction amounted to HK$130,000.
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At the annual general meeting held on 15 May 2008, HLB were re-
appointed by the shareholders as the Independent Auditors of the
Company at a fee to be agreed with the Board. The Audit Committee
reviewed the terms of engagement letter of Independent Auditors in
November 2008 and agreed with HLB the audit fees for auditing the
financial statements of the Group for the Year at HK$420,000.

It is recommended that HLB shall be re-appointed as the Independent

Auditors for the financial year 2009 at a fee to be agreed with the Board.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Company aims to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of its financial position and prospects. Financial results are
announced as early as possible, with interim report and annual report
as well as other price-sensitive announcements and financial disclosures

published as required under the Listing Rules.

The management provides explanation, information and progress update
to the Board for it to make an informed assessment of the financial and

other issues put before the Board for approval and consideration.

Throughout the Year, the Directors had selected appropriate accounting
policies and applied them consistently. The Directors acknowledge their
responsibilities for preparing the financial accounts of the Group which
give a true and fair view and are in accordance with generally accepted
accounting standards published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. A statement by the Independent Auditors about their

reporting responsibilities for the Year is set out in this annual report.

The Independent Auditors did not report for the Year that there were
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Directors are responsible for maintaining the system of internal
control of the Group and reviewing its effectiveness regularly. The internal
control system covers financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions. During the Year, with the assistance of the
Audit Committee, the Directors had conducted a review on the existing
internal control system of the Group and considered the system effective
and adequate. The Directors will continue to enhance the system to
cope with the changes in business environment with reference to the

recommendations of the Audit Committee.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company is committed to safeguard shareholders’ and the
Company's interests as a whole and encourages shareholders to attend
general meetings of the shareholders to participate in the important
decisions of the Company for which the shareholders’ approval is
required under the Listing Rules and the laws of Bermuda. The Company
regards general meetings of the shareholders as an important event as
it provides an important opportunity for direct communication between
the Board and the shareholders. The Directors, including the INEDs,
chairman of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, and the
Independent Auditors were available to answer questions at the annual
general meeting held in May 2008. Members of the independent board
committee were also available at the special general meetings to address

shareholders’ queries.

Procedures for and the rights of shareholders to demand a poll under the
Bye-laws of the Company were disclosed in all the Company's circulars to
shareholders during the Year, in compliance with the requirements about
voting by poll as specified in the Listing Rules. Separate resolutions for
each substantially separate issue were proposed at the annual general
meeting held in 2008 by the chairman. The level of proxies lodged on
each resolution, and the balance for and against the resolution, after it
had been dealt with on a show of hands were indicated by the chairman
at the annual general meeting. Also, the chairman, at the commencement
of the shareholders’ general meetings, explained the procedures for
demanding a poll by shareholders before putting a resolution to the vote
on a show of hands, and the detailed procedures for conducting a poll
and then prepared to answer any questions from shareholders whenever
voting by way of a poll were required. The results of the poll at the

general meetings were made public by means of public announcements.

With the implementation of certain amendments to the Listing Rules
effective on 1 January 2009, the voting at all general meetings of the
listed company should be conducted by poll. It is believed that the voting
by poll can fully reflect the proprietary rights of the shareholders and is
a fairer method of determination for the shareholders than voting on a

show of hands.

Statutory announcements, financial and other information of the Group

are made available on the Company’s website, which is regularly updated.

Shareholders may put their enquires to the Board and also put forward
proposals at general meetings by way of a written notice addressed to
the Company Secretary at the registered office or principal office of the

Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Accountability and transparency are indispensable for ensuring good
corporate governance and, in this regard, timely communication with the
shareholders, including institutional investors, is crucial. The Company
considers good investor relations as a key part of its operations and
continues to promote investor relations and enhance communications

with the investors.

The Company maintains a corporate website (www.g-prop.com.hk) to
make the Group's information, statutory announcements, and other
financial and non-financial information available on the internet to

facilitate its communication with shareholders.

The Company welcomes suggestions from investors and shareholders,
and invites them to share their views and suggestions by contacting the

investor relations team at investor.relations@chineseestates.com.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that corporate governance principles and practices
are essential to the business communities. Ongoing effort will be put
to review its corporate governance practices from time to time so as
to accommodate the changing circumstances. The Company will try its
best to maintain, strengthen and improve the standard and quality of its

corporate governance.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the "Board”) present
to the shareholders their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2008 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the

consolidated financial statements.

TURNOVER AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
INFORMATION

The Group's turnover and contribution to loss for the Year from operations
analysed by principal activities are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries and jointly controlled
entities as at 31 December 2008 are set out in notes 39 and 40 to the

consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

income statement on page 39.

No interim dividend was declared for the Year (2007: Nil) and the Board
did not recommend any payment of final dividend for the Year (2007:
Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

five years is set out on page 119.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in investment properties during the Year are set out in note

17 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the investment properties held by the Group as at 31

December 2008 is set out in the schedule of properties on page 120.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the Year are set out

in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the share capital of the Company during the

Year.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out on

page 41 of the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2008, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), amounted to approximately HK$54,351,000
(2007: HK$73,121,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the laws of Bermuda, being the

jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kong, Chi-ming (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Leung, Wing-pong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan, Wing-kwan (resigned on 19 May 2008)
Mr. Chang, Wing-yiu (resigned on 19 May 2008)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. David Chain, Chi-woo

Mr. Lam, Yat-fai

Mr. Leung, Yun-fai

Pursuant to Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Leung,
Wing-pong and Mr. Leung, Yun-fai will retire from office by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election. The retirement by rotation of Mr.
Leung, Wing-pong is on voluntary basis. The relevant details of Mr. Leung,
Wing-pong's voluntary retirement by rotation are stipulated in “Board of
Directors” section under the Corporate Governance Report of this annual

report.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

No Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than

statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE(S)'
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2008, none of the Directors, chief executive(s)
nor their associates, had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO"),
or otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange") pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the

“Listing Rules").
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2008, so far as are known to any Director or chief
executive of the Company, the following parties (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) were recorded in the register kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company, as being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to be

interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:

FERERARAIZKRHMDER

BEERESTBRAEMAT R_ZTNF
TZA=1+—H ARAREZZRBAE G
FEI36RABF2ERMAHEELSTHNER

DA BEEAFEEEEIERAEEARAD
BITRASNHA L2 Em 2 AL (BEFSAE/ER
THRABRIN AT :

Number of Percentage of
Shares Issued Share
Name of Substantial (ordinary share) Capital
Shareholders R EE Capacity Notes EBITRA
FERRER ZER) g% Bt &E BotE
Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung 1,512,059,473 Founder of trust, beneficiary of 18&3 74.54%
(“Mr. Lau") trust and interest of controlled
Blan s ([815%4£]) corporations
LRI A EREXEAR
SRk N o
Asian Kingdom Limited 493,678,883 Beneficial owner 1 24.34%
EnEB A
Crown Jade Limited 493,678,883 Interest of controlled corporation 1 24.34%
RPEH AR 2R
Global King (PTC) Ltd. (formerly 1,018,380,590 Trustee 2 50.20%
known as Global King Ltd.) LA
GZ Trust Corporation 1,018,380,590 Trustee, beneficiary of trust and 2 50.20%
interest of controlled corporations
EHEAEFREZEAR
SR e NE) -
Chinese Estates Holdings 1,018,380,590 Interest of controlled corporations 4 50.20%
Limited (“Chinese Estates”) EEe | NG 35
(rE&)])
Mass Rise Limited 740,521,829 Beneficial owner 4 36.51%
EABRRAFA En#EA A
High Victory Limited 113,818,911 Beneficial owner 4 5.61%

=BARRA A BHEBEAA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" INTEREST IN
THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY (cont'd)

Notes:

1. The entire issued share capital of Asian Kingdom Limited was owned by
Crown Jade Limited, the entire issued share capital of which was wholly
owned by Mr. Lau. Crown Jade Limited and Mr. Lau were deemed to be
interested in the same parcel of shares in which Asian Kingdom Limited was
interested.

2. GZ Trust Corporation as trustee of a discretionary trust held units in a unit
trust of which Global King (PTC) Ltd. was the trustee. Global King (PTC) Ltd.
was entitled to exercise more than one-third of the voting power at general
meetings of Chinese Estates. Accordingly, Global King (PTC) Ltd. and GZ
Trust Corporation were deemed to be interested in the same interests stated
against Chinese Estates.

3. Mr. Lau, by virtue of his 68.08% interests in the issued share capital of
Chinese Estates, was deemed to be interested in the same interests stated
against Chinese Estates.

4. These shares of the Company comprised 740,521,829 shares beneficially
owned by Mass Rise Limited, 113,818,911 shares beneficially owned by
High Victory Limited, 76,877,685 shares beneficially owned by Luckpoint
Investment Limited, 50,000,000 shares beneficially owned by Million
Point Limited and 37,162,165 shares beneficially owned by Great Empire
International Ltd. Each of Mass Rise Limited, High Victory Limited, Luckpoint
Investment Limited, Million Point Limited and Great Empire International Ltd.
was an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Chinese Estates and therefore,
Chinese Estates was deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares in
which each of such companies was interested.

All the interests stated above represent long position which included
interests in shares and underlying shares. As at 31 December 2008, no
short position was recorded in the register kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

As at 31 December 2008, none of the Directors were interested in any
business which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or

indirectly, with the Company’s businesses.
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1. Asian Kingdom Limited & & & 17 B A
fiCrown Jade Limited# & © ifiCrown Jade
LimitedZ 28 BB ITRABREEE2EHRE -
Crown Jade Limited & 2%t & # 172 & H Asian
Kingdom Limited# & # 2z 2 B —#titHF #EH
MRS o

2. GZ Trust Corporation (fEA—HMEBEEZE
£ A) #8 —IE A Clobal King (PTC) Ltd.fE{55E
AZ BRI {7t E % 2 B4 - Global King (PTC)
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2113818 911K - ZHIREFRARNER
5 276,877,685 % * Million Point Limited
5 A 250,000,0000% 3% 15 X Great Empire
International Ltd. B # B 237,162,165 %%
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International Ltd¥ AEB s AEE2EWB A
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

There were no arrangements to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its
holding company or its holding company's subsidiaries was a party to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate

during the Year.

DIRECTORS" AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the “Connected Transactions” and “Continuing
Connected Transaction” as mentioned below, there were no contracts of
significance in relation to the Company's business, to which the Company
or any of the Company’s subsidiaries was a party, subsisting at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year, and in which a Director had,
whether directly or indirectly, a material interest, nor there were any other
contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business between
the Company or any of the Company's subsidiaries and a controlling

shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In January 2008, the Company and Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
("KB") (a former controlling shareholder of the Company and, through
its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Fame Ascent Investments Limited
(“Fame Ascent”), was interested in approximately 36.51% of the entire
issued share capital of the Company) entered into a master agreement
(the "Master Agreement”) in relation to a possible formation of joint
venture companies for the purpose of production and sale of acetic
acid in the PRC. The formation of the relevant joint venture companies,
constituted a major and connected transactions for the Company under

the Listing Rules.

The Company considered the medium to long term business plan
and decided to cease to take part in the methanol project and acetic
acid project. In February 2008, the Company and KB entered into a
termination deed (the "Termination Deed”) pursuant to which the
Company and KB had conditionally agreed to terminate the Master
Agreement. The entering into of the Termination Deed constituted a
connected transaction for the Company and in view of the fact that
(1) the Termination Deed did not involve the acquisition or disposal
of any assets/liabilities and (2) neither party is required to pay any
compensation to each other, the Termination Deed is exempted from
reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements under

the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (cont'd)

In February 2008, the Company as vendor and Fame Ascent as purchaser
(as at the date of the disposal agreement, Fame Ascent was interested
in approximately 36.51% of the entire issued share capital of the
Company and was a controlling shareholder of the Company at that time)
entered into a disposal agreement (as varied and supplemented by the
supplemental disposal agreements in March and June 2008) pursuant
to which the Company had conditionally agreed to sell, and Fame Ascent
had conditionally agreed to purchase, (i) the entire issued share capital of
Big Winner Investments Limited (“Big Winner"), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, which mainly involved in the methanol project in PRC;
and (ii) all the shareholders’ loan due from Big Winner and its subsidiaries
("Big Winner Group”) to the Company. Such transaction constituted a
major and connected transactions of the Company in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

The said disposal transaction was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting held on
22 July 2008. The disposal was completed on 25 July 2008 with an
aggregate consideration of HK$183,698,986.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

In November 2008, the Company as lender entered into a conditional
loan agreement with Fancy Mark Limited (“Fancy Mark"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Chinese Estates as borrower, granting a three-year revolving
facility of up to HK$200 million, with Chinese Estates acting as guarantor
for repayment of the loan (the “Loan Transaction”).

According to the Listing Rules, the Loan Transaction constituted a
continuing connected transaction of the Company and was approved by
the independent shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on 12 December 2008.

As at 31 December 2008, the Company has advanced HK$136 million to
Fancy Mark at the interest rate of HIBOR plus 1% per annum. The loan is
repayable on demand upon serving not less than one month'’s prior notice
to Fancy Mark.

Having reviewed the Loan Transaction, the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company, pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules on
the requirement to carry out annual review on the continuing connected
transactions, confirmed that the Loan Transaction, notwithstanding that
it was not made in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company, was made on normal commercial terms and in accordance
with the relevant loan agreement governing on terms that were fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
(cont'd)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the auditors of the Company
confirmed that the Loan Transaction:

(1) had received the approval of the Board;

(2) had been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing the Loan Transaction; and

(3) had not exceeded the cap disclosed in the previous announcement
made on 4 November 2008.

Save as mentioned above, there were no other discloseable non-
exempted connected transactions or non-exempted continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules during the Year.

Related party transactions, inclusive of those also constituting the
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction, entered into
by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 are disclosed in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

To the extent of the related party transactions as disclosed in note 37 to
the financial statements constituted connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction, the Company had complied with the relevant
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

Remuneration package comprised salaries and year-end bonuses based
on individual merits. The Company had adopted a share option scheme
since 15 February 2002 (the "2002 Scheme"). Details of the 2002
Scheme are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
There were no outstanding options at the beginning and at the end of the
Year. No options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the
Year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates two retirement benefit schemes:

(1) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong
(the "MPF Scheme"); and

(2) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the laws of Hong
Kong (the “Top-up Scheme”).

Both the MPF Scheme and the Top-up Scheme were defined contribution
schemes and the assets of both schemes were managed by their
respective trustees accordingly.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (cont'd)

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 64 and with
at least 60 days of service under the employment of the Group in Hong
Kong. Contributions were made by the Group at 5% based on the staff's
relevant income. The maximum relevant income for contribution purpose
is HK$20,000 per month. Staff members are entitled to 100% of the
Group's contributions together with accrued returns irrespective of their
length of service with the Group, but the benefits are required by law to

be preserved until the retirement age of 65.

The Top-up Scheme is available to those employees with basic salary
over HK$20,000 and/or years of service over 5. Contributions to the
Top-up Scheme are made by the Group at 5%, 7.5% or 10% of staff's
basic salary (depending on the length of service) less the Group's
mandatory contribution under the MPF Scheme. Staff members are
entitled to 100% of the Group's contributions together with accrued
returns after completing 10 years of service or more, or attaining the
retirement age, or are entitled at a reduced scale between 30% to
90% of the Group's contributions after completing a period of service
of at least 3 years but less than 10 years. The Top-up Scheme allowed
any forfeited contributions (made by the Group for any staff member
who subsequently left the Top-up Scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) to be used by the Group to offset the current level of

contributions of the Group.

The Group's cost for the said schemes charged to consolidated income
statement for the Year amounted to HK$58,000 (2007: HK$16,000)
after reduction of HK$7,000 (2007: HK$12,000) from the forfeited

contribution of the Top-up Scheme.

During the Year, no contributions to the Top-up Scheme (2007:
HK$12,000) were forfeited and used to reduce existing level of
contributions. At 31 December 2008, HK$7,000 (2007: HK$14,000) was
utilised and no balance (2007:HK$7,000) was available to reduce future

contribution.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate turnover attributable to the Group's five largest customers

amounted to less than 30% of the Group's total turnover for the Year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier
and five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 70% and 100%

respectively, of the Group's total purchases for the Year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (cont'd)

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share

capital) had an interest in any of the five largest customers of the Group.

None of the Directors and their associates but a substantial shareholder
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company's share capital) had an interest in one of the five

largest suppliers of the Group.

ADVANCES TO AN ENTITY

As at 31 December 2008, pursuant Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules, the
Group had made advances of HK$136 million at HIBOR plus 1% per
annum to Fancy Mark, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chinese Estates, the
holding company of the Company. The loan had been granted for the
capital expenditure and general working capital of Chinese Estates and
its subsidiaries. The loan is a three-year revolving facility, with Chinese
Estates acting as the guarantor, but is unsecured, and repayable on

demand with maturity date on 3 November 2011.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained the
prescribed amount of public float during the Year and up to the date of

this report as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited by
Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng (“HLB") who would retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed to the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint

HLB as the auditors of the Company.

There have been no other changes of auditors in the past three years
except for Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned on 15 November
2006 and HLB was appointed as the auditors of the Company on 2
January 2007.

On behalf of the Board

Kong, Chi-ming
Deputy Chairman

Hong Kong, 11 March 2009
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B # &6 F 5 5
Hodgson Impey Cheng

HLB

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
G-PROP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of G-Prop
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 39 to 118, which comprise
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2008, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

notes.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY (cont'd)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether

the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit includes performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors
of the Company, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2008 and of
the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 11 March 2009
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Continuing operations
Turnover

Direct costs

Gross profit

Other operating income

Administrative expenses

Finance cost

Gain on disposal of investment properties

Gain on disposal of an intangible asset

Gain on redemption of convertible bonds

Fair value changes on investment properties

(Loss)/profit before tax

Income tax credit

(Loss)/profit for the year
from continuing operations

Discontinued operation

Loss for the year from discontinued operation

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable
to equity holders of the Company

(Loss)/earnings per share
From continuing and discontinued operations

Basic (HK cents per share)

Diluted (HK cents per share)

From continuing operations

Basic (HK cents per share)

Diluted (HK cents per share)

BFREEEEY
|
BHEKRA

EM

H A& & WA
TRFEX

B 75 A AR
HEREME 2 W=
HE-BEVEEZ
W
BEASRES 2K S
REMERTFERS

BRELAT (B51R) & A
PIRER 5N

REERAFEALEHE
Bz (BE) HF

ERIEREXER
REFRBER KRS
E ) F i

AEEARRABRA
B ARG
(E18) A

BR(EE) BR
REFER

ERIEREER
AR (ZBEW)

g (0Bl

REFERCERY
AR (ZBEW)

g (SRosl)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

2008 2007

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FAT
7 6,790 2,812
(239) (314)

6,551 2,498

9 6,147 5,343
(13,117) (4,770)
10 (9,893) (2,169)
- 580

- 11,865

8,281 =

(3,700) 1,950

11 (5.731) 15,297
13 2,690 1,334

(3,041) 16,631

16

(1,813) (1,438)

(4,854) 15,193

15

(0.24) 1.49

(0.24) 1.39

(0.15) 1.63

(0.15) 1.50

BEMIP E R AR A MBS IHRR 2 — 8010 °
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REBEERER

At 31 December 2008 R-FENFF-A=+—H
2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 2 FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties REME 17 27,300 31,000
Goodwill EES 18 2,939 10,459
Property, plant and equipment M - BB MR 19 - 4,250
Prepaid lease payments B EERIA 20 - 60,397
Interests in jointly controlled entities e [R] 47 il b 1 e A 21 - -
Available-for-sale financial assets AIFEseRMEE 22 127,704 =
157,943 106,106
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and B BAFIER
other receivables H 4th jE Y Fk 38 23 1,839 70,862
Short-term loans receivable R E R 24 = =
Loan to a fellow subsidiary BTRARMEBARER 25 136,000 -
Prepaid lease payments TR HEERE 20 - 1,253
Tax recoverable A Y =] 7 18 106 106
Time deposits, bank balances EHER BITEF
and cash kR & 26 5,442 354,015
143,387 426,236
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals, deposits received and B ARAFRIE BEK
other payables e hEMENZIE 27 1,759 2,853
Tax payable G IR 24 463
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FE R M B A A
IB 28 144 =
1,927 3,316
Net current assets RBEERE 141,460 422,920
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABER 299,403 529,026
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Convertible bonds Al iR & 5 29 = 143,678
Deferred tax liabilities BLEFHIBEE 30 2,025 19,689
2,025 163,367
Total assets and liabilities HEERER 297,378 365,659
Capital and reserves IR AT &
Share capital AR AR 31 20,282 20,282
Share premium and reserves B8 19 5 (B M (B 15 277,096 345,377
Total equity RAfE AR 297,378 365,659

REEZEN _TTNF=A+ B ERK
RN WHATRRES

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 11 March
2009 and signed on its behalf by:

Kong, Chi-ming JL & HA Leung, Wing-pong RER
Director EF Director =3

BEMIMI i S AR A MR 2 — =B

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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At 1 January 2007

Profit for the year

Exchange reserve arising
on translation of
foreign operations

Total income recognised
for the year

Issue of shares (Note 31)

Issue of convertible bonds

Deferred tax

Dividend paid

At 31 December 2007 and
1 January 2008

Loss for the year
Exchange reserve arising
on translation of
foreign operations
Fair value changes of
available-for-sales
financial assets
Realised on disposal of
subsidiaries

Total income/(expenses)
recognised for the year
Effect on change of tax rate

Redemption of
convertible bonds

At 31 December 2008

The accompanying notes form an integral

financial statements.

RZZZTtE5—H—H
AEERF

BEBNEBREEZ
B 5 FE

RERHRRALE

BIRM (HE31)
EAMBRRES
EIERE
BERRE

i t5F

T
A=+
TNE

(R

~BR
it

[T =+ 11

A

TERER
BMEBINEBMELZ
B 5 R

~
=

TG SHEE?
ATEEH

HERNBARREE

REERARA/
(Xit)@m

hEEH T E

BO AR ES

Convertible
bonds Investments
Share Share equity revaluation Translation  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
R E S
RARD RE

BRE  RORE ®E EfRE EXRE REEN BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THET TER TET TEL THEL TEL
7,940 24,764 = = 234 95,738 128,676
= = = = = 15,193 15,193

= = = = 2,118 = 2,118

= = = = 2,118 15,193 17311
12,342 185,404 = = = = 197,746
= = 36,297 = = = 36,297
- = (6,430) - - - (6,430)

- - - - - (7.941) (7.941)
20,282 210,168 29,867 = 2,352 102,990 365,659
= = = = - (4,854) (4,854)

= = = = 12,595 = 12,595
= = = (31,038) = = (31,038)
= = = = (14,713) = (14,713)
= = - (31,038) (2,118) (4,854)  (38,010)

= = 367 = = = 367
= = (30,234) - - (404)  (30,638)
20,282 210,168 - (31,038) 234 97,732 297,378

part of these

consolidated

BEFS M iE R AR A M B IRER 2 — 871D ©
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2008

mEBHERER

Operating activities
(Loss)/profit before tax
— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operation
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Gain on disposal of an intangible asset

Fair value changes on investment properties

Gain on disposal of investment properties

Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial
assets

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Impairment loss of goodwill

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Interest expenses
Gain on redemption of convertible bonds

Net exchange loss

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
Increase in deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Decrease in accruals, deposits received and
other payables

Increase/(decrease) in amounts due
to fellow subsidiaries

Cash used in operations
Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Investing activities

Interest received

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries
Proceeds from disposal of an intangible asset

Loan to a fellow subsidiary
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of investment properties

Net cash used in investing activities

REZED
BRBian (B1R) A

—RBEEEER
—ERIERERR

BT EARE:

BN
HE—REVEEZ
Yz
REVMENTEES
HEREME 2 W
AHGEZEREE
ZMEEE
HEHE LR 2 e
BEZREER
ME- BERREZ
e
BNEE TR 2 #H
B X
WO A AR E S 2
Yz
PE 3 B 1RF R

EEESEHAIZ

REESRE

®e - ENZER
H b JE Uk FOE
3

JE A5 AR A B0
Bz Kk
H At JE A ROB
VA

AN ES NG
FIEE M, CRD)

KEMAzBRE

BN PTEH

REEHHAZ

B R

REZH

2 HFE

W BB BT B A R

HE KB R BAMSRIA
HE-HBTLEE

P15 5K0R

f& TR Z BRI ER
BEAHGEZZRE

3

BEME BEE&E
HERBEMEMBHIA

RERHMAZ

WEHER

BE—_FE\F+-A=1+—HIFZF
2008 2007

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
G FiB T
(5,731) 15,297

(2,410) (1,438)

(9,632) (5,532)

- (11,865)

3,700 (1,950)

- (580)

- 220

(1,302) (33)

- 1,470

6 11

2 4

9,893 2,169

(8,281) -

5,744 -

(8,011) (2,227)

(45,574) (65,003)

(23) (4,112)

144 (185)

(53,464) (71,527)

(524) (108)

(53,988) (71,635)

7219 5,532

33 = (93,620)
34 170,185 8
= 11,865

(136,000) -

(163,022) -

(911) (238)

= 45,518

(122,529) (30,935)
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Financing activities

Net proceeds from issue of convertible bonds

Redemption of convertible bonds
Net proceeds from issue of shares
Dividend paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from

financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and

cash equivalents

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents

at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents

at the end of the year

Analysis of the balances of cash and
cash equivalents

Time deposits, bank balances and cash

BMETH

BT AR E S
IR PR

BEABRES

BT G RIRFHE

EREE

BMEE® (M),
PRS2 3 &%

REeERBAESEEER
(F4) /48 F a8

SMEEE DY B

FHARER
REe%EEHE

FRRER
REe%EEH

ReERAEEEEER
BEDW

EHFER RITEF R
R

The accompany notes from an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FAT
- 177,806

(180,000) =

- 197,746
- (7,941)

(180,000) 367,611

(356,517) 265,041

7,944 912

354,015 88,062

5,442 354,015

5,442 354,015

BEMIP iE R AR A M BIHRER 2 — 8010 °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2008

e EHRRME
AR _EENFF A=+ —HIFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability. The shares of the Company are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange"). Its ultimate
holding company is Chinese Estates Holdings Limited (“Chinese Estates”),
a company incorporated in Bermuda with its securities listed on the Stock
Exchange. The addresses of the registered office and principal office of
the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the

annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of the Group and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except otherwise

indicated.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries are engaged
in securities investments and finance and property investment. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities
are set out in Notes 39 and 40 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, a number
of amendments and interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), which are effective for the

Group's financial year beginning on 1 January 2008.

The new HKFRSs adopted by the Group in the consolidated financial
statements are set out as follows:

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets
(Amendments)
HK(FRIC) = Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share

Transactions

HK(IFRIC) — Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(FRIC) — Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit
Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements

and their Interaction

1. —RER

ARRA—BREREIMRIZZHREER
AR RARZBRAOEEAHERIMARA
A (B Em - ESRERAAANA
FEa MR - HFEHEHRZFT LM 2 Chinese
Estates Holdings Limited ([ZE&|) - A A FZ
AMREEREEREE I HIERAFR A
AIER] — SRR -

B (BT RARBEZNEEE REAH
RN ARG EMBRRABTEH AEEED
MEAAESROZ TRE(TET) °

ARREEMNBARIC EBEBREFRER
M RWMERE - HEXEWE A B KRz
HiE 2z EZEB D RIHN RS MR IRKMFE39
%40 °

2. A MEETELEYM
B & 28I ([ &8 /5
H2H])

WAER ARBERERELQHAAR

((EARHBAR)) B THAEER T
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AEERGAMBBRERAZHTBEBYHRE
ERFIMT

BEAGTEAEIER BHEemEEEFHHE
BB %S 2R
F79% (BFTA)

B (BB %RE BBV EREERNE
ZEZET) 255 — B R EH
—REER BRERXS

B (BRMBHE BR7% 5 & L HE
REZET)

—REBEI12%R

B8 (BB ERE ARG ERE9
ZEZET) F-REMNREE
—REFE145% 2R REES

23RN HEBE BE
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (cont'd)

In addition, the Group has early adopted HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
where early adoption was permitted. HKFRS 8 supersedes HKAS 14
“Segment Reporting”, and requires operating segments to be identified
on the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that
are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision-makers in order
to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its performance.
As the business segments reported by the Group in accordance with
the requirements of HKAS 14 are the same as the operating segments
provided to chief operating decision-makers as required by HKFRS 8,
there are no material changes to the operating segments on the adoption
of HKFRS 8.

The application of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the
results and financial position for current or prior accounting periods have
been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has

been required.

The Group has not early adopted the following revised standards,
amendments and interpretations that have been issued but are not yet
effective. The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact of
these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to determine whether these
new HKFRSs will have a significant impact on how its results of operations
and financial position are prepared and presented. These new HKFRSs
may result in changes in the future as to how the results and financial

position are prepared and presented.

2. BRI MEETEEM

758 4B ([ & 59155
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FTEREI4AR R EERMIKE D RETEY
BHESEERMRERMEIBLERKER
HZREDBRER WRAT BT HRE R
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs™) (cont'd)

The Group has not early adopted the following revised standards,
amendments and interpretations that have been issued but are not yet

effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & 1
(Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1T & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 13

HK(IFRIC) — Int 15

HK(IFRIC) — Int 16

HK(FRIC) — Int 17

HK(IFRIC) — Int 18

Improvements to HKFRSs'

Presentation of Financial Statements?

Borrowing Costs?

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements?

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation?

Eligible Hedged Items?

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate?

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations?

Business Combinations?

Customer Loyalty Programmes*

Agreements for the Construction of Real

Estate?

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation®

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners?

Transfers of Assets from Customers?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 except for
the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (cont'd)

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting for
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 July
2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for changes

in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial instruments,
which are measured at their fair values, as explained in the accounting

policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs, which is a collective term that includes all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards,
and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong, the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing

Rules").

2. J@ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ&%ﬂ%ﬂé\%ﬁﬁ
G R ([ %8B R
EXER]) (8)

FEREEMEREEAEINR (KLEFT) AR
BYBREABAS_TENFLA-RHZKAR
ZEEAFE2RPERABERA 2R ZEBA
2 & IE - ARG ERNE275 (KEFT)
REeErE8gRRRNBARZHEREREY

_J'Eu‘i/s

ZEHEE A
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

A summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Group and

the Company in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements

is set out below:

(a)

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31

December each year.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more
than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable are considered

when assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date

that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority
interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value
of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is

recognised directly in the consolidated income statement.

All significant inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated
on consolidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by

the Group.
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3.

(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Basis of consolidation (cont’d)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Interests in associates
are accounted by the equity method of accounting and are initially
recognised at cost. The Group's interest in associates includes

goodwill (net of any impairment losses) identified in acquisition.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, interests in associates
are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted
for post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the profit or
loss and of changes in equity of the associate, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group's share of losses of an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided
for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on

behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's

interest in the relevant associate.
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3.

(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Basis of consolidation (cont’d)

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled

entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
interests in jointly controlled entities are carried in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in
the Group's share of the profit or loss and of changes in equity of
the jointly controlled entities, less any identified impairment loss.
When the Group's share of losses of a jointly controlled entity
equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional
share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that jointly controlled

entity.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the
Group, unrealised profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's interest in the jointly controlled entity, except to the
extent that unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case, the full amount of losses is

recognised.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

(b) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable assets of
the acquired subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities
at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries
is presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet. Goodwill
on acquisitions of associates or jointly controlled entities is included
in interests in associates or jointly controlled entities and is tested
for impairment as part of the overall balance. Separately recognised
goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are

not reversed.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on acquisition in a financial year,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial year. When
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis
of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in

subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, jointly controlled entities
and associates, the gain or loss on disposal is calculated by
reference to the net assets at the date of disposal, including the
attributable amount of goodwill which remains unamortised and any

relevant reserves, as appropriate.

3.

(b)

TEETBRME (F)

B
ﬁﬁhW$W$tﬁW$*H$E@E
1 PR BB P /B8 2 R) - Bk X B I A R #2E
%%ﬂ%%@§§2A$ﬁ2§%°%%
MEBRARZBEENENRNGEEERR
R 2 - WHEH LS R R RARES#E
ZEETIMARE R SR EH R
B WIFREBREHRZ B 0ETRE
A e DRI R BB FABURE
WRRK AR R R EEEIIR - BB 2R
BEEBETSEMQ -

SORERARN S WEMEEZHEES

EEERAXERKBEZHBRASE 2 &
BEEERcELBENXZHEHRACELSE
f-BMEMBZREELBELNEEFRRN
B BN R BR R 7T B H 3R R (B B A TOR(EDR
HRAMBEEAKREMEL ZHEM
THEMBZREEABVEN LYK
FEARIETRENR HREELE
iz A E SRR EREREE - RIRER
BeED AR ZEMIMNHEZR
EE EERAEZBEVASEEE LKA
B2 DR EZ BN 2 EAMEE - (A
BEZAEEREEEENGFAKRART
MR- B REBR TSN R IR
8] o

g‘t

hf[[3

RERHEWNB QR - kRS S &
LRAIR - HEZREHEBRHZELE
Rz EEFEAE SREFMDAEE
ZEREBAEREBEHEE (WER) -



52

G-PROP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £ E ¥ AR A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

z'_:ll'_/_\

PR R EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BE_FENF+_H=+—HIFEF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TERFERRME (8)
POLICIES (cont'd)

(c) Investments in subsidiaries (c) EMBRAZRE
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company's balance EM B AR 28 E IR KA R ER 2 &
sheet at cost less any identified impairment loss. The results of ‘JZHTEE??EEW\ZK"ﬂEFE%%°f9ﬁ
subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on the basis of dividend DA FEB TR AR AR E W R E W
received or receivables. Hx,%\zgﬁﬁllﬂﬁ :

(d) Revenue recognition (d) HAER
Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from properties HeWA (BEREBELCEROMEL 2
let under operating leases, is recognised on a straight line basis over BERBHEZE2HS) NEGERABHA
the period of the respective leases. A FEARER ©
Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, SREEZHNBRATIRAS EBRITE
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective RAERMNE LR OIE  ERERA
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts ELEEREERTBEBRFIHAZMHER
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the KReWHERMREEZEEREFE
financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount. Z A=

(e) Investments properties (e) KREY*

Investment property, which is property held to earn rental and/or
for capital appreciation. On initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured using the fair value model. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in the fair value of the investment properties is recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement for the period in

which they arise.
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3.

()

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment other than leasehold land and
land use right are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant and
equipment (other than leasehold land and land use right) over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account their estimated

residual value, using the straight line method, at the following rates

per annum:
Type Basis
Buildings Over the remaining unexpired

terms of the leases or fifty years,

whichever is the shorter
Furniture, fixtures and 5 to 10 years

equipment

Motor vehicles 5 years
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in the consolidated income statement in the year which

the item is derecognised.

When the leasehold land and land use right and buildings are
in the course of construction for production, supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purpose, the leasehold land and land
use right component is classified as a prepaid lease payment and
amortised over a straight-line basis over the lease term. During
the construction period, the amortisation charge provided for the
leasehold land and land use right is recognised as part of cost of
construction in progress. Construction in progress are carried at
cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are
in the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of

operating in the manner intended by management).
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3.

(g

(h)

(i)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Interest in leasehold land and land use right
Interest in leasehold land and land use right represents prepaid
lease payments made and are amortised over the lease term on a

straight-line basis.

Impairment loss

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to

the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line

basis over the lease term.

3.

(g

(h)

(i)

TEETHRME (8)

HELT MR LM EFEZ E
MET R iE Mg ERERMNE
B8 WHRHBRIA B A -

BEER
AEEERNEBEGEARSEEEZK
HE AEEAEHRBEREEECHR
BB E - & E 2 AT Y SR A EHER
HiREE AEHEEEC REERELRRA
Yo o B8R - R B B IR RE AN SR RS -

EREBBERERDE AEREEZK
HEEKAREHELER bt AIKE
R EENRZREE TN BAGHE
E T R AR DA 4F 2 X R R R T AR BL(E
BZBERATRE ZREE - BERIERD
BB HERR UL A ©

A
RBEOGRAESHEEERGE R
REbtn R Rk EREBEEEAEAZED
B R BEG AR MEODBAK
B -

A E 751 A
REBOZHSWASNERERAN
BERZFEGABERTHER -ER NIRRT
REMORELEZNTEERAEMA
HEBE<REE ARAREHANNE
BORTER R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2008

—ZEZN\FFIH, Annual Report 2008

gk E e
BE-FE NG+ A=4—AIFE

55

3.

(i)

4)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Leasing (cont’d)

The Group as lessee

Rental payable under operating leases is charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Benefit received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line

basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item that
forms part of the Group's net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case, such exchange differences are recognised in equity in
the consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in the consolidated income statement for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in
equity, in which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised

directly in equity.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

(j) Foreign currencies (cont’d)
For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance
sheet date, and their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rate for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised as a separate component
of equity (the translation reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in the consolidated income statement in the period in

which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences

arising are recognised in the exchange reserve.

(k) Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet
liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting

profit.
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3.

(k)

)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Taxation (cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised
based on sales that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to
the consolidated income statement, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax

is also dealt with in equity.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, are capitalized as part of the cost
of those asset. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when

the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated income

statement in the period in which they are incurred.

3.

TEETBRME (F)

(k) HE(H)

)

AEEEHRRMBARRBERRZER

BURBERABEMELEZERNE

RERBRBECHARE EAREFE

NEREREZER 2 BOREREEZEIK
AT BB AT 5 AR EB [l Bl 53 4E Bl i

EERBEEZREAENRESEEGERY
tERaS  WHE N KA REBA B MR
AU el =B BB B ER R D o

BEEBRBDRBEHERBHNAGBEE
KEEZLRLEER MmN EE B A RA
FERRBZHEAE - RERBENE

FETAGAWREER  HEBEEN ARG
AR AR ZIBR  HELEHE NS R
i P RIE o

EERA

REE ERRREREREECHERE
HEERE BENMERRETEEZHD
KA -EREFEEEE LEEREMRRN
AHHER FEXARTERTER-

MEEMEENAERELBMRAREGS
U a8 R FERR



58

G-PROP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £ E ¥ AR A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2008

GmEMEHRRME
A EENFF A=+ —HIFE

3.

(m)

(n)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Retirement benefits costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in the consolidated income statement.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. The

accounting policies adopted are set out below.

(m)

(n)

TEETHRME (8)

2B 1k 78 7 B 7K
RERFTERRBAMAS 2 HANEE 2
HIRF A RS R ER B

@M TA
E-REERBRAERTASNKX
Z— I ARG E EER BRARERS
REERTHAB-eREERERAE
VTR ATFEFE - WERBTEREE
ke@afE (AR FEFERRFERFA
BRzemBEERSRBERIN) BEEE
162 R B AT 2 R A £ B
BESEMAB(MER)ZAFE %
HeREEXSREE (WER)Z2AF
EMNER - WA R FEFEEXTFEFA
BEZeREEACRHABEREGZ
R ZRAMNBERERS W R AR -

EHEE
AEBEZEREED B RERKEKRK
BRARGEZCEREE-MBLERRE
HEEZTRMEE BRHAZEERR
EUEER LCEBEENHESREER
EREMSREREMNEE —RIERA
RNBEEZEREEER - TRMN 2G5
BRI -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2008

—ZEZN\FF I, Annual Report 2008

e M BRRNE

iz

59

3.

(n)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont’d)
Financial assets (cont'd)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where

appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets designated as at fair
value through profit or loss, of which interest income is included in

net gains or losses.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including other receivables, short-term loans
receivable, loan to a fellow subsidiary and time deposits, bank
balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, less any identified impairment losses.
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3.

(n)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont’d)
Financial assets (cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as any of the other categories (set
out above). In addition to equity investments, the Group has also
designated certain debt investments as available-for-sale financial

assets.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until the financial
asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity
is removed from equity and recognised in consolidated income
statement. Any impairment losses on available-for-sale financial

assets are recognised in consolidated income statement.

For available-for-sale financial assets that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured, they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition. An impairment loss is recognised in consolidated
income statement when there is objective evidence that the asset is

impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each
balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been

impacted.

For financial assets, other than available-for-sale equity investment,

objective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

or financial re-organisation.
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3.

(n)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont’d)
Financial assets (cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (cont'd)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments
and observable changes in national or local economic conditions

that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss
is recognised in consolidated income statement when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original

effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent

periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectable, it
is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to the consolidated

income statement.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through consolidated income statement
to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost

would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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3.

(n)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability

and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual

interest in the asset of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities are mainly comprised of other
financial liabilities which include accruals, other payables and
deposits received and amounts due to fellow subsidiaries which
fall within the category of other financial liabilities. These financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest rate method.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain both the
liability and conversion option components are classified separately
into respective items on initial recognition. Conversion option will
be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company's own equity

instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component
is determined using the prevailing market interest of similar
non-convertible debts. The difference between the proceeds of
the issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to
the liability component, representing the conversion option for
the holder to convert the bonds into equity, is included in equity

(convertible bonds equity reserve).
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3.

(n)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont’d)
Financial liabilities and equity (cont'd)
Convertible bonds (cont'd)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
bonds is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The equity component, represented by the option
to convert the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible bonds equity reserve until the
embedded option is exercised (in which case the balance stated in
convertible bonds equity reserve will be transferred to share capital
and share premium). Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance stated in convertible bonds equity reserve
will be released to the retained profits. No gain or loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement upon conversion or expiration

of the option.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity

is recognised in consolidated income statement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised

in consolidated income statement.

Determination of fair value

The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at
the balance sheet date is based on their quoted market price or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price

for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the
fair value is determined by using appropriate valuation techniques.
Valuation techniques include discounted cash flow analysis,
comparison to similar instruments for which market observable
prices exist, option pricing models and other relevant valuation

models.
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3.

(o)

(p)

(q)

(r)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with

original maturities of three months or less.

Provision

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Where the effect of the time value money is material, the
amount of a provision is the present value at the balance sheet date

of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees of the Group

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding

increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in

equity (share option reserve) will be transferred to retained profits.

Related parties transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control or common significant influence. Related
parties may be individuals (being members of key management
personnel, significant shareholders and/or their close family
members) or other entities and include entities which are under
the significant influence of related parties of the Group where those
parties are individuals, and post-employment benefit plans which
are for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that

is a related party of the Group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESFHRHBE (&)
POLICIES (cont'd)
(r) Related parties transactions (cont’d) () BEALXE (&
A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction when W—IERXRGPRREEALTHETER
there is a transfer of resources or obligations between related HEFER  AREXIERSEEAL
parties. R e
(s) Non-current assets classified as held for sale (5) FIBRKHELEZHTEEE
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for WERBDEERHEANZ FAEEE
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a B ER S MIEFEBFFEL ARG K5
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition FIRFEIERE 2 EE - BE (L EAR)
is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the 2 P 1 75 7] A% & K A DAZR R BB H &5
assets (or disposal group) are available for immediate sale in its 75 74 & M IE R -
present condition.
Non-current assets (and disposal group) classified as held for sale FIRFIEHEZERDEE (REEHA
are measured at the lower of the assets’ (disposal group) previous ADABE (HEERN) BEZERRERA
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. FEREHEXE (AREERE)FE
(t) Segment reporting (t) DEHE
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the BENBE—BRERA  BEHRTEE
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. EEREALZABRENERX —FE
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating BLEERRATRBERELREZES
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, ZEg AEMERIEESEEIER
has been identified as the steering committee that makes strategic RIS RES B RE -
decisions.
4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4. T H
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) =T HEHEF
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Financial assets CREE
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEEZEeRMEE 127,704 -
Loans and receivables ERRENRIE (BERE® R
(including cash and cash equivalents) REEEEE) 142,834 424,423
Financial liabilities cRAaE
At amortised cost R SHRAR 1,903 146,531
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4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd) 4.

(b) Fair value of financial instruments (b)

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted market bid

prices and ask prices respectively; and

. the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis using the
estimated future cash flows and the current market rate of

return.

Except as details in the following table, the directors of the
Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated financial statements

approximate to their fair values.

2008
Carrying
amount
AR B
HK$'000
FER

Financial liabilities cEEeE

Convertible bonds (Note) AR ES (M) -

ST AR (&)

ST AZRFHE
CHMEERSBREBBEZAFEKEUATH
NEFE -

BEREGRR RGN ERERRE ™
LEEZEREEREBRAGBZIA
FEDDHNRSEM S EERR
BEE &

c HppemEERERABZAYE
TIRBE BTN EERALIZE
R RRRERERERKMIZE
BERZTRBERENTERE

BRI TRFINZERIN ARAREFR
B HEUBRRBGZeREERER
BECEREE BERAFERE

2007
Carrying
Fair value amount Fair value
AFE REE NFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
- 143,678 140,845

Note:

The fair value of the liability component is the present value of the
contractually determined stream of future cash flows discounted at the
interest applied at that time by the market to instruments of comparable
credit status and providing substantially the same cash flows, on the same
terms, but without conversion option.

i
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4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies
The risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at 31
December 2008 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets are the carrying amount of those assets as stated in
the consolidated balance sheet. The Group's time deposits are

deposited with banks of high credit quality in Hong Kong.

The Group made transactions with counterparties with acceptable
credit quality in conformance to the Group treasury policies
to minimise credit exposure. Acceptable credit ratings from
reputable credit rating agencies and scrutiny of financials for non-
rated counterparties are two important criteria in the selection of
counterparties. The credit quality of counterparties will be closely
monitored over the life of the transaction. The Group reviews its
financial counterparties periodically in order to reduce credit risk
concentrations relative to the underlying size and credit strength of

each counterparties.

In an attempt to forestall adverse market movement, the Group
also monitors potential exposures to each financial institution

counterparties.

The Group's exposure to credit risk arises from default of the
counterparties, with a maximum exposure equals to the carrying
amount of the each financial asset as reported on the consolidated

balance sheet.
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4.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

Interest rate risk

The Group has interest-bearing assets including bank balances,
available-for-sale financial assets and short-term loan to a fellow
subsidiary, and are exposed to cash flow interest rate risk. The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure on
a continuous basis and adjusts the portfolio of interest-bearing
financial assets and liabilities when necessary. If the floating rates
had been 50 basis points higher/lower, with all other variables
held constant, the Group's loss before tax for the year ended
31 December 2008 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$1,501,000 (2007: profit before tax increase/decrease
HK$1,770,000).

The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has decreased during the

current year mainly due to the decrease in bank balances.

Foreign exchange risk

Following the disposal of certain subsidiaries in the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC") which was denominated in Renminbi
("RMB"), the Group's major monetary assets and monetary liabilities
were denominated in HK$, except of the available-for-sale financial
assets were denominated in Euro (“EUR") and United States dollars
("USD"). The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign current assets and liabilities.
The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the

need arise.
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4.

(c)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
Foreign exchange risk (cont'd)
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated

monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as

follows:

Assets BE
EUR BT
usb E7T
RMB AR
Liabilities =R
RMB AR

Sensitivity analysis
As HK$ are pegged to USD, it is assumed that there would be no
material currency risk exposure between these two currencies and

therefore is excluded from the analysis below.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in the HK$ against the EUR and RMB. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items, and adjusts their translation at the
period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive
number below indicates an increase in profit where the HK$
strengthen 5% against the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening
of the HK$ against the relevant currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit and the balances below would be

negative.

4.

(c)

TRIA(E)

BERBREERERKE (&)
S ()
EEBUIINERELU L EBEERER

BERREAHZERSBUOT
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
36,173 -
94,838 -
= 72,991
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
= 855

BURRE H T

RS T BT 4 -
MY ESXEERER -
X2 DM e

HRRMEER 2
Am AT EHNT

TRANAEBEHBETHB T RARKE
ZER EF RN BR5% 2 SR E o A A&
MEZEEABREINERBRES 5%
ERBRELE MEBLEAEEEY
INEBEERTTREABIHIE 2 #HIEL 25T
B BRESNMBFBRFAIINEREN 2
HEETEH - 37 HARK 35002 HN K E 5K 4
EARZIBE ZBRE - TXZEHETE
TU R AR B W 2 T R $E 58 5000 FI & 15
I o 74 7T K AR R B 2 [ R 8F 5550 - ¥
MEEK 2 B RS RAR - M TFX
ZERKBEE8
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BE_FENF+_H=—1—HIFEF
4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd) 4, ¢RI A (5&)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d) () HBREBREEEEREKRK (&)

Foreign exchange risk (cont'd)

Impact of EUR BTz B
Profit or loss A E

Impact of RMB AR zZE
Profit or loss R E

Currency risk

The majority of the Group’s monetary assets and monetary liabilities
by value and the rental income are denominated in HK$, except
the available-for-sales financial assets are denominated in EUR and
USD. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of foreign current assets and liabilities. The Group
will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider

hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated

monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as

follows:

Assets BE
EUR BT
usD =7
RMB AR
Liabilities afE
RMB AR

SR e (B )
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
1,809 =
- 3,607
B m g

AEENEERESRASS 2EEE
EREERBAED A TAHE  HER#
FELREENRTRETE -~EE
BRIYERLBIRBEERBERAET
AISMNELIPEER - ARE B E I EREI
HRER INEHEERERBEIHERINE
[\ gz o

AEENIINEAECERBEERERA
BERREAHAZEEERT

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
36,173 =
94,838 =
- 72,991

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT

- 855
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4.

(c)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
Price risk

The Group's debt investments classified as available-for-sale
financial assets which are measured at fair value at each balance
sheet date and expose the Group to price risk. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risk profiles. In addition, the Group has appointed a
special team to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the

risk exposure should the need rise.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the

exposure to price risk at the balance sheet date.
If quoted market prices had been 5% higher/lower, the Group's:

. Investments revaluation reserve for the year ended 31
December 2008 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$6,385,000 (2007: Nil) as a result of the changes in fair

value of available-for-sale financial assets.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by regularly monitoring current
and expected liquidity requirements and ensuring sufficient liquid
cash and intended credit lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet the Group's liquidity requirements in the short
and long terms. The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring by
management. Management will raise or refinance bank borrowings

whenever necessary.

As at the balance sheet date, the Group does not have significant

exposure to liquidity risk.

4.

(c)

TRIA(E)

BERBREERERKE (&)

B 18R
REFEARAFEAEEBAEES
BERARGESREECZABRESAK
SEHERERRR- - EEEURITRE
BKFZREBEASEEBRAREL - b4
ARBEEZRERMNMEEEBERRR I
NFEREEZEE R -

BRERE DT
ATHBEEIMIREEER ZERRE

BEEE -
f 5B L T PE5% - IR E M :

HE-TT ) N\F+ZA=+—HL
FEZIREASHEHEBE MR
A>#496,385,0008 T (ZEZE L F :
/) W BERARGESREEY
ANFEEEEHFTE

REBE AR
AEEEERBECRR 2T EAREN
ERBARRBAZRBDESTFR  WHERF
BEREARSREMMEAEKRAER
TREBEZRE NENAREZEHK
RERBDECHE -EREGHBELENR
PEcRR XHRAFEHEERITE
ESKRITIEEBRE -

BER AKREYBERZABESRA

o
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5.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives when managing capital are:

—  to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as going concern,
so that it continues to provide returns for the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and benefits for other
stakeholders;

- to support the Group's stability and growth; and

- to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the costs of

capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to the Shareholders, return
capital to the Shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to

reduce debt.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages taking into
consideration the future capital requirements of the Group and
capital efficiency, prevailing and projected profitability, projected
operating cash flows, projected capital expenditures and projected
strategic investment opportunities. The Group currently does not
adopt any formal dividend policy. The management of the Group

regards total equity as capital, for capital management purpose.

During the year, the Group's overall strategy remains unchanged.

5. BEANERREE

AEBEEREAZREMT:

- WRAKEARNEERERLE
MBS ARNRR IR (TAR])
TRERE SEMBESATRR
) s

- XRAREZREREZEE: R

- HAERREZEARBUARBEKERK
o

REFNFAEERERE KAEELHE
ARRIKNZBRESE  MEREHZE
RO BEITHRAHEEERE -

AEEEBERRS REREEARE B
FERZARE AKERRZEALR
REE RS - E A LA 2 B FRE

Bz EERERE BAHEARAXRE
HIRBIREREE - AEE B A1 RS
TREXARERR - AKEZEEERE
EEAE KR A ESARARER

REERN AEE 2 EBRBERITGIE -
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6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies which are
described in Note 3, management has made the following judgment
that have most significantly effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving estimations,

which are dealt with below).

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2008, a deferred tax asset has been recognised in
relation to the unused tax losses of approximately HK$468,000 (2007:
HK$101,000). The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. In cases where the actual future profits
generated are less than expected, a material reversal of deferred tax
assets may arise, which would be recognised in the consolidated income

statement for the period in which such a reversal takes place.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired according to the recoverable
amount which requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value-in-use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order

to calculate the present value.

Investment properties

As described in Note 17 to the financial statements, investment properties
are stated at fair value based on the valuation performed by independent
professional surveyors. In determining the fair value, the surveyors have
based on method of valuation which involves certain estimates. In relying
on the valuation report, the management has exercised their judgment
and is satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions. Should there are changes in assumptions due to
change of market conditions, the fair value of the investment properties

will change in future.

6. BA%ED T H b M fhET AR
Ttz EERR

FERMEIMAAEE 2 @5 HERE BREERD
EH TGN BERRTER L EEARE
FEZHE (RTXEEYRMEFTERM) -

Fre#

RZZEZENF+_A=+—8B BAREAH
BB 2 RIERIEE E £468,0008 T (=%
T4 :101,000870) B AR - IELEBIEE
ERGERIERTRAEARTABRMZANR
S NI Sk AR R R 2 R o i R 2R 2 B U A
RATEH B REEAERC RERIBEER
B ZIEEE R A ERESRE I
R N o

B Z 1 1 6 1E
ErTRESEALRRBERAATKRESER
B ERAGMHREMESRKZRSELEM
ZEREE -AKREGEEREERAREDR
REZREELBUZARAERERGEL
PR KRR AE AR ERE

REYH

HINF B IMAM 17 WEME R AE L
BXRFHENRTE 2 A FEAR < RIFHEIRRE R
FEBDREBRSE TEZGETRET
ERERERLERSHOIEH THERRR
&M ETDETIRRTISEHR D - a0 5k A &

NARKES -
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7. TURNOVER

Turnover represents the net amounts received and receivable from third
parties and is summarised as follows:

Continuing operations

U AL
7. =3%78

EEBEBERNRERE=FH ZHRIBFRE
AT

Discontinued operation Consolidated

RBEREER BRIEREER 28
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FTAEL THER FTAEL THER FTAEL
Rental income il N 1,916 2,782 - - 1,916 2,782

Interest income from K& R

investment and finance WA 4,874 30 - - 4,874 30
6,790 2,812 - - 6,790 2,812

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-makers that are used to make

strategic decisions.

During the year, the Group disposed of its subsidiaries and assets
relating in manufacturing and sales of methanol products, which resulted
the discontinuance of the methanol business segment. Details of the
discontinued operation are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Except for the discontinued methanol business segment, for management
purposes, the Group currently engaged in two operating divisions
— (i) investment and finance; and (ii) properties investment. The
segmentations are based on the information about the operation of the
Group that management uses to make decisions.

Principal activities are as follows:
Investment and finance =

Investing and financing activities

Properties investment - Property leasing

The Group's measurement methods used to determine reported segment
profit or loss remain unchanged from the year of 2007.

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that operate
different activities. They are managed separately because each business
has different market and requires different marketing strategies.

Further, the business units are also managed to operate in different
countries separately. Revenue and result are attributed to countries on the
basis of the properties located.

8. 4R A KE

AEERBIZLERKERANELRBIRE
BEHNCBSEELLDE-

RAFE AEEHEHGHRERFERE
EmZHMBRARIREE HEBKILEERE
EBDE BRIECEXEB 2HBEHNGEE
BHMEMFE16

BRERIEZFERBELIRIN AEREESFE X
SERBSEEMELENRTI-ORE MM

R)WEKRE - EAD BT ADEREEER
MEHARRZARBLEEH -

ETERERBMT:
RERME - RERMBED
MERE - HE?E

o

BT +F AEEARETHZ
FISKE 1B 5 B AR TS

AR ASRSFREETAEBED LA
MEBET MEREARB2ZTHTR BE
HIATRR S #RE S AT 2R AN
‘B o

AN BEEXBETRTRBR D FERLE - AR
FETRMFEMEREMRRES EARK -
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8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (cont'd)

An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment (loss)/profit for the year,
assets, liabilities, and other selected financial information for the year by

operating segment is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2008

8 - /\\<:<E

AEEARFEREENREADZAZHBARZ
(BR) &7 BE AERECENTBE

POy

=5

=

=

D3 (

/

B2 SFmT

)

BE-_Z2ENF+-A=1+-HILFE

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation Consolidated
B&LE
REGEER BEER E)
Investment Property
and finance  investment Total Methanol
RERMH MERE At B
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TR TET TERT TET TR
Consolidated income statement REWER
Revenue PN
Revenue from external customers RENBEP ZWA
~ Hong Kong -& 4,874 1,916 6,790 - 6,790
- PRC —H - - - - -
4,874 1,916 6,790 = 6,790
Result ES |
Segment results for reportable segments AEZRAECHEEE
~ Hong Kong &% (962) (2,006) (2,968) - (2,968)
- PRC —H - - - - -
(962) (2,006) (2,968) - (2,968)
Interest income FL2 WA 4n1 M 4,758
Unallocated corporate income AARAFHA 9,694 - 9,694
Unallocated corporate expenses APEARRL (7,281) (2,451) (9,732)
Finance cost BMBRA (9,893) - (9,893)
Loss before tax BB ATE B (5,731) (2,410) (8,141)
Income tax credit FEHES 2,690 597 3,287
Loss for the year AERER (3,041) (1,813) (4,854)
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8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (cont'd)

At 31 December 2008

Consolidated balance sheet

Assets

Segment assets for reportable segments
- Hong Kong
- PRC

Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Segment liabilities for reportable segments
- Hong Kong
- PRC

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

Other segment information
Fair value changes on investment properties
Depreciation and amortisation
Additions to non-current assets
(other than financial instruments and
deferred tax assets)

GREERER

BE
UE2RNBELNREE
-Bk
—HE

afE

UERN BN HAR
-BE
—HE

HtipBER
REMEZLTEED
RELEH
REFRDEE
(EWIEREEHRA
BERI)

AN =]
8. /\\%Eﬁj i/\ (/‘E)

R

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation Consolidated
BALE
REGEER BEER ]
Investment Property
and finance  investment Total Methanol
RERHB NERE At RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER TR TR
267,049 30,949 297,998 - 297,998
267,049 30,949 297,998 - 297,998
3,332
301,330
(50) (2,489) (2,539) - (2,539)
(50) (2,489) (2,539) - (2,539)
(1,413)
(3,952)
- 3,700 3,700 = 3,700
- - - 8 8
- = - 1,047 1,047
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8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (cont'd) 8. KENE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE_ZT+LHFT_A=1T—HIEFE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation  Consolidated
2&IE
RELEER BEER wa
Investment Property
and finance investment Total Methanol
RERMB WERE G Rz
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THEIT THEL THET THET TAT

Consolidated income statement REWER
Revenue A
Revenue from external customers RENBEEZBA
- Hong Kong —-&B5 30 2,782 2,812 - 2,812
- PRC —H - - - - -
30 2,782 2,812 - 2,812
Result E4
Segment results for reportable segments AZRAECHREE
- Hong Kong —-B5 30 4,998 5,028 - 5,028
- PRC —HE - - - (1,470) (1,470)
30 4,998 5,028 (1,470) 3,558
Interest income FL2HA 5,291 241 5,532
Unallocated corporate income AAEAFTYRA 11,917 - 11,917
Unallocated corporate expenses AABRARFAE (4,770) (209) (4,979)
Finance cost BB (2,169) - (2,169)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRBALER (ER) 15,297 (1,438) 13,859
Income tax credit FEHEe 1,334 = 1,334

Profit/(loss) for the year KEERF,/ (BB) 16,631 (1,438) 15,193
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8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (cont'd)

At 31 December 2007

Consolidated balance sheet

Assets

Segment assets for reportable segment
- Hong Kong
- PRC

Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Segment liabilities for reportable segments
- Hong Kong
- PRC

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

Other segment information
Fair value changes on investment properties
Depreciation and amortisation
Additions to non-current assets
(other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets)
Impairment loss of goodwill

GREEAER

5
TR ELHBAE
-5
~

8&
T2RHBZHEAR
&%
i

3

op
m
T

Http HER
REMEZATEED
REREH
REFRDEE
(ERTARBEHRE
EERI)
BRAEER

Continuing operations

Discontinued
operation  Consolidated
B&IE

SRISEE mEER ma
Investment Property
and finance investment Total Methanol
RERWH MERE B il
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET FAEL FAET TAT
35 34,615 34,650 - 34,650
- - - 167,187 167,187
35 34,615 34,650 167,187 201,837
330,505
532,342
(10) (4,289) (4,299) = (4,299)
= = = (11,315) (11,315)
(10) (4,289) (4,299) (11,315) (15,614)
(151,069)
(166,683)
= (1,950) (1,950) = (1,950)
- - - 15 15
- - = 341 341
_ - = 1,470 1,470
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9. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Other operating income included

the followings:

Interest income

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

10. FINANCE COST

Effective interest expense

on convertible bonds

A EERABRE
AT&RE:

MBKA
HERB LAz E

TR EZER
MBXH

Continuing operations

BFECBER
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT
4,717 5,291
1,302 33

9. EMALEWA

Discontinued operation

DRIEBEEL
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T
4 241

Consolidated

RE
2008
HK$'000
TET

4,758
1,302

2007
HK$'000
AT

5532
33

Continuing operations

HESEER
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT

9,893 2,169

10. B # B A

Discontinued operation

BRIEEEEK
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TH

Consolidated

RE
2008
HK$'000
TEx

9,893

2007
HK$'000
FTAEL

2,169




80

G-PROP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £ E ¥ AR A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2008

e MBERERNME

F+—A=1—HIFFE

11. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

(Loss)/profit before tax has been arrived at after charging:

11. BRBAT (BR) 5 A

RBiAT (&1R), 8 B kR

Continuing operations  Discontinued operation Consolidated
REREER BRIEREER ]
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET TR FHET TR T
Staff costs: BIAA:
Directors’ emoluments (Note 12(a)) EZ# % (H712(@)) 290 234 - = 290 234
Salaries and other benefits FeREMRET 758 775 809 34 1,567 809
Retirement benefit scheme SR RTR AT 2 30
contributions excluding TRREET
directors and after forfeited BEHBRE R
contribution of HK$7,000 {H347,0007% 7T
(2007: HK$12,000) (Z2T L&
12,0008 7%) 34 16 2% - 58 16
1,082 1,025 833 34 1,915 1,059
Auditors' remuneration REAH & 420 420 - - 420 420
Exchange loss ERER 5,914 - - - 5,914 -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale  AIEFESRMEE 2
financial assets REERE - 220 - - - 220
Depreciation on property, nE BELRRB2TE
plant and equipment - - 6 11 6 11
Amortisation on prepaid lease BNEERE#H
payments - = 2 4 2 4
and after crediting: WErA:
Gross rental income from RENMEZHE WAL
investment properties 1,916 2,782 - - 1,916 2,782
Less: direct operating expenses from il FREER S WA Z
investment properties that RENZEEE
generated rental income RERx
during the year (170) (285) - - (170) (285)
direct operating expenses from FRUEEEHSHBA
investment properties ZREMERE
that did not generate rental BERX
income during the year (69) (29) - - (69) (29)
1,677 2,468 - = 1,677 2,468
Amortised income derived from REEBRFSHALZ
effective interest income included ~ E#HWRA (Bt A
in interest income FISWA) 1,464 - - - 1,464 -
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12. DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS AND

(a)

EMPLOYEES" EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amount of emoluments payable to the directors
of the Company during the year was HK$290,000 (2007:
HK$234,000).

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 December
2008 and 2007 is shown as below:

EEhEEMS

(a) EEH2
REEEMNARAEZEEMESREAL
290,000/ 7T ( Z T Z £ F : 234,000/
JL) °

BE_ZTTN\FE_FETLF+_A
=t RLFEREZTZHME25MT

Retirement
Salaries and benefit scheme
Directors’ fees benefits-in-kind contributions Total
Name of directors =g E3He FeREMERN RREF G EIER Bt

2008 2007 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TAR THET

2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FTAET TERT FAET THERL FAEL

Executive directors HITES
Kong, Chi-ming IEH 10 10 - - - - 10 10
Leung, Wing-pong REH 10 10 - - - - 10 10
Halina Hung, Shi-wei* RRE B - 2 - - - - - 2
Lau, Ming-wai** Bl e - 2 - - - - - 2
Chan, Wing-kwan*** Bk g - = - = - = - =
Chang, Wing-yiu*** Bk gxek = = = = = = = =
20 24 - - - - 20 24
Independent BIYFEHT
non-executive directors EE
David Chain, Chi-woo BER 90 70 - = - = 90 70
Lam, Yatfai MAE 90 70 - - - - 90 70
Leung, Yun-fai 28 90 70 - - - - 90 70
270 210 - - - - 270 210
290 234 - - - - 290 234

* resigned on 1 March 2007

o appointed on 1 March 2007 and resignation with effect from 1 June
2007

**%  appointed on 25 October 2007 and resigned on 19 May 2008

* RZZEZ+LF=F—HEHE

¥R ZTEEHFE=A-BERERBEEN
AHA-_ZTT+FA—H

E R-EEAE+ATHAEZERE =T
ZN\FRA+NBEE
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12. DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES" EMOLUMENTS (cont'd)

(b) Employees’ emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
one (2007: two) was an independent non-executive director of
the Company whose emolument was included in (a) above. The

emoluments of the remaining four (2007: three) individuals were

as follows:
Salaries and other benefits e REAMER
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R ARAR F FT B4R R

The emoluments of each individual were within the emolument
band of less than HK$1,000,000.

For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, no emolument was
paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals, including the
directors of the Company, as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group. No director of the Company waived any emolument in the years
ended 31 December 2008 and 2007.

e MEHRMEE
BE—TE)\Ff— = —HIEE
NR.EEZENEEMNE ()

(b) ESH=
AEERUGRSFMEREF L (=%
ZLF M) BRARBZBILIFNTE
= HEMER&SIIN EX(a) - R T

—TELF =) AL ZHEERET

LU
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERx THET
1,190 748
55 14
1,245 762

A+ 2 B% A1,000,0008 LA T2
B & 4R 5l o

HE_TTZ ) \FR-_ZTTE+LFFT+-A=+—H
HEE AEABEINEMNME FZ AN
EEFMES (BEAARES) EAEMASN
AREBER G - BEZTTNFR=_ZTZL
+tEF A=+ HUEFE ARRATEES
REFAMSE -
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13. INCOME TAX CREDIT 13. FT1S MK %

Continuing operations  Discontinued operation Consolidated

BFECBER BRILEREER RE
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET TET THT TET THT
The tax credit/(charge) comprises: ~ HiB# %,/ (ZH) B
Current tax — Hong Kong EHHE-FF (50) (467) - - (50) (467)
Underprovision in prior years BEFERFEIR (35) - - - (35) -
Deferred tax i 2 RE
— Current year -AEE 2,614 1,801 - - 2,614 1,801
— Attributable to a change - HEEFRENE
in tax rate 161 - 597 - 758 -
2,690 1,334 597 = 3,287 1,334

EAEMNESHIBEHEZE TSN NEFE+ A
=+ —H I FEMBERF G IZHE16.5%
—EBTELEFE1750)5TH -

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits for the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: 17.5%).
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13. INCOME TAX CREDIT (cont'd)

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)/profit

before tax per the consolidated income statement as follows:

13. TSR R (48)

AEEzRBEREGARER 2KRBAT (B
18),RFEEROT

2008 2007
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %
FER FHET
(Loss)/profit before tax BRELAT (E1R) R A
— Continuing operations —RFELEER (5,731) 15,297
— Discontinued operation —BERIEEEER (2,410) (1,438)
(8,141) 13,859
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits tax ~ $Z& B F 1S5
rate of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) B £16.5%
(ZZEZT L5
17.5% ) st & 2 i IE 1,343 16.5 (2,425) (17.5)
Tax effect of income B AR A
not taxable for tax purposes 2R E 2,739 33.6 3,143 22.7
Tax effect of expenses not G2 M N Dz -
deductible for tax purposes 2R E (2,155) (26.5) (388) (2.8)
Tax effect of tax losses/deferred ~ N FHRFIIBEIE,
tax assets not recognised REHMIBEELZ
M E (418) (5.1) (531) (3.8)
Tax effect resulting from change of &M K& &)
applicable tax rate M E 758 9.3 - -
Utilisation of tax losses previously /) FA 5E Al A & 3R
not recognised Mg E 18 1,055 13.0 1,535 11.1
Tax underprovision in prior years — BAFE A
BETR (35) (0.4) = =
Income tax credit Frisii e 3,287 40.4 1,334 9.7

Details of deferred taxation are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated

financial statements.

14. DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of final
and interim dividend for the year (2007: Nil).

BELERIB 2 FBEENGE B MR TS0

14. B2

ARAEFTRBREANFEZRA R T HK
B(ZETLF &)
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15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share from

continuing and discontinued operations attributable to equity holders of

the Company is based on the following data:

(Loss)/earnings:

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company for the purpose of
basic (loss)/earnings per share calculation from:
— Continuing operations

— Discontinued operation

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
— effective interest expense on convertible bonds
— deferred tax relating to effective interest expense

on convertible bonds

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

Adjustment for assumed exercise of

convertible bonds

15. &k (E518) &7

KEFBEREKIEERTE
ARBRAFBAEARMGREFERDRIELE
B BRARREE (B1R) /B THREINA
TEERHE:

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
(B8] &
BEsTEERER (BEB)
BRZANRRABRAFE A
fE(E (E518) m A
—REFECEES (3,041) 16,631
—RE BRI EET (1,813) (1,438)
(4,854) 15,193
BEEBTTRR I ME:
— AR ESFBERAE 2,169
— AR ESERAN B
Mz BT E (380)
16,982

Number of shares
BHEE
2008 2007

BETERE 2 MEFHME  2,028,255,008 1,020,609,068

RRABREFETEM

Bh UL VE S B

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2008 did not

assume the conversion of the convertible bonds outstanding during the

year since their conversion would have an anti-dilutive effect on loss per

share.

203,957,382

1,224,566,450

HREBFEAREE 2 AT RBRESSHERE
BERREEXE MBE_FTT/\F+-A
=T BLEFEZSRETEIRLERR LR
BRI AR A S o
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15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (cont'd)

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share from

continuing operations attributable to equity holders of the Company is

based on the following data:

(Loss)/earnings:

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company for the purpose of
basic (loss)/earnings per share calculation from:

— Continuing operations

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
— effective interest expense on convertible bonds
— deferred tax relating to effective interest expense

on convertible bonds

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

Adjustment for assumed exercise of

convertible bonds

m]BhL

15. 5% (BE) /BF (&

KEFEEERE
ARBARABEARGREFELLER 2 E
BREARLEE (B1R) B TIREAT8IET

o .

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FAT
(F8’) BA:
AEstEFRER (BE)
BFZ2 AR RBRAFEE A
FEfh (E518) wF)
—REFERLEER (3,041) 16,631
%7 /EEE@HXZ?/;EB:
—EREFERANEX T 2,169
—BEREFERAELZ T
2 BRI IE (380)
18,420
Number of shares
BHEE
2008 2007
BT T @A 2 TR 1,020,609,068

2,028,255,008

B AR E 7T

BhUE 1 S R

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2008 did not

assume the conversion of the convertible bonds outstanding during the

year since their conversion would have an anti-dilutive effect on loss per

share.

203,957,382

1,224,566,450

HRRBMEAREEZTRRESSHSRE
BEKRESEYE WBE_ZTT ) \F+=HA
St HEFEZSRESHERTERR LG
BRI E S
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15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (cont'd)

From discontinued operation

Basic and diluted loss per share from discontinued operation is HKO0.09
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: HKO.14
cents), based on the loss for the year from discontinued operation of
HK$1,813,000 (2007: HK$1,438,000) and the denominators detailed as
continuing and discontinued operation for the basic (loss)/earnings per

share.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2008 and 2007
did not assume the conversion of the convertible bonds outstanding
during the year since their conversion would have an anti-dilutive effect

on loss per share.

16. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 1 February 2008, the Company (as vendor) and Fame Ascent
Investments Limited (“Fame Ascent”) (as purchaser) entered into a
disposal agreement to which the Company had conditionally agreed to
sell, and Fame Ascent had conditionally agreed to purchase, (i) the entire
issued share capital of Big Winner Investments Limited (“Big Winner")
which is a directly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; and (ii)
all the shareholders’ loan due from Big Winner and its subsidiaries (the
“Big Winner Group”) to the Company at an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$183,699,000. Details of the disposal were set out in
Note 34(a) to the consolidated financial statements and the Company's
circular dated 30 June 2008. The disposal was completed on 25 July
2008. Following the disposal of the Big Winner Group, the Group

discontinued in operation in methanol business.

15. Bk (E8) &8F (&)
KB BRI AEEET
BE_TT N\F+A=+—HIEFE B&IL
TS 2 BIREAR R #E &8 AT R0.0974E
W ZFZLF:0.1481) HREKRBE L
IR 2 FAEE1,813,0008 L (ZFE
+ 4 :1,438,0008 70 ) & £ XFFu st E 2R B F
BEEEBRERIEEEEB 2 SRERN (F
B) Bz EmatHE -

HRABMEANRBREZ TRRESSHERE
BERRBEYE MBEE_TTN\EFR_-F
EHFT A=+ RILFEZSREEEHE
YEBRRABLEEIRRES -

RZZENF_A—HB AQR (fEAEH)R
ZREREBRAR([BA] EABEH)IXL
—HHEHH Bt AARERERELE
MERERGEREBENARAZEESRE
MBARBEWEZEEBRAR ([BEH])E2IHE
BIORA: RMHEHMREMB AR ([E 5%
B)ERARRZEZMBREER  BREN A
183,699,000/ 7T o HH EFHIE & 4R & W 5 e &
MWiE34(@ AR BHA_ZTEENF A=
HZEH REHEER=_ZETN\FLA=1+H
HER - HEEHERE AEEERIEEER
B 575
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16. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (cont'd)

The results and cash flows of the Big Winner Group for the years are as

follows:

Loss from discontinued operation
Other operating income

Administrative expenses

Impairment loss on goodwill

Loss before tax

Income tax credit

Loss from discontinued operation

Cash flows from discontinued operation

Net cash flows from operating activities

Net cash flows from investing activities

Net cash flows

REERILEREER
[ E ]

Hp &l A
THRAX

BB REEER

BT A0 1R
PIREE %)

KEERIEGERBZ
B8

RECKRILEREEKZ
RERE

RELEEH RS REFE
2558

REKRBEEHZIBER

16. B F&E %

% (&)

EREERNEHFECRERRERENT

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
41 241
(2,451) (209)
= (1,470)
(2,410) (1,438)
597 =
(1,813) (1,438)
(2,451) (209)
41 241
(2,410) 32
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7. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17. REME

HK$'000
FET
Fair value AFE
At 1 January 2007 RZZEE+F—H—H 35,600
Disposals HE (35,600)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Hﬂl%ﬁﬁ%” 29,050
Increase in fair value recognised RERE W KRR 2 A FEE
in the consolidated income statements 1,950
At 31 December 2007 and 1 January 2008 RZZETLF+A=+—HEK
—ZEZNF—HA—H 31,000
Decrease in fair value recognised ERGERSERERZAFERD
in the consolidated income statements (3,700)
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZENE+_HA=+—H 27,300

The Group's investment properties are under long term leases in Hong

Kong for both years.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31 December 2008
has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on the date by
Norton Appraisals Limited, independent qualified professional surveyors
not connected with the Group. Norton Appraisals Limited has appropriate
qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of similar properties
in the relevant locations. The valuation, which conformed to the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors Valuation Standards on Properties (1st Edition
2005) published by the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, was based on

market value basis.

All of the Group's investment properties held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes, are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment

properties.

AEBERMEFEZREVEARBBONE
BRA -

AEBREMER_TENFF+_A=+—H
ZATEE—REXEERERE BIEE
BEFERFTRIITE BB E AR AR NZB
ET2HEAELEME - EHBEETEAR
RAERNEBRME s AL EREAFES
BRERAHZGELR - ZBHEDNETES
REMEBEPRER 2B ANEMBFYEME
B (ZZEZRAFE—IR)  WIRTMEEEET
ERE

AEEMBERBEERNFBEARRES KA
BEAREREZREME AR FEENG
H WD BRINEREME -
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18. GOODWILL 18. B &
HK$'000
FBIT
Cost A
At 1 January 2007 R-_TZT+LF—H—H =
Additions arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33) B WM B2 72 38 i (M 5E33) 11,929
At 31 December 2007 and 1 January 2008 RZZBEZEL+FE+_A=+—HBERK
—EENF—H—H 11,929
Eliminated upon disposal of subsidiaries F 65 BT B8 2 3] B 5 8 (8,990)
At 31 December 2008 R-ZZBENF+ZA=+—H 2,939
Amortisation and impairment B RORE
At 1 January 2007 R-ZEZ+FE—H—H -
Impairment loss recognised EERZBEER 1,470
At 31 December 2007 and 1 January 2008 RZEZLF+A=+—HRK
—EZN\F—-H—H 1,470
Eliminated upon disposal of subsidiaries A H 5 BT B8 2 ] B 3 8 (1,470)
At 31 December 2008 R-BENF+Z-A=1+—H -
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2008 R=-BENFEF+ZHA=+—H 2,939
At 31 December 2007 R-BELF+-_A=+—H 10,459
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18. GOODWILL (cont'd)

Impairment testing of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the
following cash generating units. The carrying amount of goodwill (net of
accumulated impairment losses) as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 is

allocated as follows:—

"B Y
Methanol i

Investment properties

The recoverable amount of the goodwill allocated to investment
properties business was assessed by reference to value-in-use model
which based on a five-year cash flow projection approved by the directors
of the Company. A discount rate of 16% per annum was applied in the

value-in-use model when assessing the recoverability of the goodwill.

There are a number of assumptions and estimates involved for the
preparation of the cash flow projection. Key assumptions included gross
margin and discount rate which are determined by the management of
the Group based on past performance and its expectation for market
development. Gross margin are budgeted gross margin. The discount rate

used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the industry.

18. ME (&)

2 6 1B R

RETREAR BEESEZEATHREEAS
BN ERNFR-BELFL-A=+-
H - BEZREECORRERERRSE)S R
T

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
2,939 2,939

- 7,520

2,939 10,459

PEERENREF2AEARESBERE
ARREESHAEZTFRSRER  A2EF
REERENETHE -RFEEHE 2 TKRE R
B - EREEEARBZFRREXR16% -

RARASRERALRZEABRKEMEF -TB
BREABAEEEEERBEBERRLEY
MEHRBAEEZENERIFTFEK - FH X
TyFREER K - AR A 2 3R X Bl 3 FR B AT
FRE W RRETERBZHERR -
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost

At 1 January 2007
Additions

Acquisition of a subsidiary
Exchange alignment

At 31 December 2007 and 1 January 2008

Additions

Reclassification to prepaid lease payments
(Note 20)

Exchange alignment

Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2008

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

At 1 January 2007

Charge for the year

At 31 December 2007 and 1 January 2008

Charge for the year
Eliminated upon disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2008

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2008

At 31 December 2007

A
R-FELE-A-A
1
W E AT
EL

b il

ENABEAEARERE
(Kizk20)

&5 A%

HEHBAR

R-EENF+ZA=1+-H

ERAERAE

R-ZZ+F—A—H
AEERE

RZZZ+F+-A=+—H
r=FENE-H—H

REERE

5 BB 2 B 4

R=2BN$t=-A=t-H

REE
R-EENF+ZA=1+-H

RZEBLF+-A=1—H

19. V% W= M&RiE

Furniture,
fixtures Construction
and Motor in
Buildings  equipment vehicles progress Total
RE£8

B R#&E RE KEIR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL FAET FTAET FTET TAET
- = = 34 341
1,900 3 175 1768 3,846
36 = 3 35 74
1,936 3 178 2,144 4,261
- 28 883 136 1,047
= = = (236) (236)

136 - 35 137 308
(2,072) 31) (1,096) (2,181) (5,380)
5 - - 11

5 - 6 - 11

3 - 3 - 6
©) = ©) = (17)
1,931 3 172 2,144 4,250
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20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

All of the Group's prepaid lease payments are prepaid for leasehold land

outside Hong Kong.

At the beginning of the year

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Disposal of subsidiaries

Reclassification from property, plant and equipment
(Note 19)

Amortisation

Exchange alignment

At the end of the year

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Current asset

Non-current asset

The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise:

Long lease

Medium-term lease

20. BN HE KA

AEEMERNBEERBARURERREINZE

B+ HIEN o
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
REL] 61,650 =
g =NE| - 60,600
BB A A (66,091) =
BEME BEEXEETHE
(FFzE19) 236 =
B (138) (105)
PEH F % 4,343 1,155
REK - 61,650
BHREDWOT
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
mENE E - 1,253
EMEEE - 60,397
- 61,650
AEBEENBERESRE:
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
REFFE L - 1,423
FRHEAFR 49 - 60,227

61,650
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21. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 21. F R S
ENTITIES
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Share of net assets of jointly controlled entities BhHRERIEEESE - -

Details of the Group's jointly controlled entities as at 31 December 2008 REER-_ZZENFT_A=+—BzHAE
are set out in Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements. S 2 RN G E B |RR M40 -

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's jointly AEBARZFHEE 2 MBEREAOT

controlled entities is set out below:

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHBIT

Turnover LR - -
Loss for the year REEEE (10) (13)
Loss attributable to the Group RNEEELER - -
Total assets 85 E 4,237 4,242
Total liabilities BmAE (160,372) (160,367)
Total assets and liabilities mEERBE (156,135) (156,125)

Net assets attributable to the Group NEBEEEEFE - =
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22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 22 AHEFEZEREE

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
The Group's available-for-sale financial assets AEBEHRGECERMEE
comprise: 2R
Club debentures (Note i) gRES (M) = =
Floating rate notes (Note i) 2 EER ()
— Listed —tm 35,262 -
— Unlisted — LT 92,442 -
127,704 =
Notes: M 5
) The club debentures are stated at cost less impairment loss at each balance D) HEHEESNS ARG EEQAFERAE
sheet date because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so ERZBXARGBEERE ARAEFRR/R
significant that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair BRI EMEEREATE WA ESERAFE
values cannot be measured reliably. HEHZKAMBRREBEAR-
For the year ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, the directors of the REZE_ZTZN\ER_ZEZELF+TA=+—
Company reassessed the recoverable amount of the club debentures. In the HIEFE AARESEHZESHEGEHF 2
opinion of the directors of the Company, the full amount of HK$220,000 was W [El &5 o AR R EERA » 5%£220,0008 T2
impaired. 2 ERE °
i)  The listed floating rate note carries floating interest at EURIBOR + 0.2% iy  LEWEERBRIBFANXBMRITEERR
(2007: Nil) per annum and will mature in 2011. At the balance sheet date, MO2E (ZEELF: E)FHE FHABARE
the listed floating rate note is denominated in EUR and its fair value is ——F-REHH ZELTEERBRIART

referenced with quoted market bid price available on the industry group.

The unlisted floating rate notes carry floating interests at LIBOR + 0.3%
to LIBOR + 0.35% (2007: Nil) per annum and will mature between 2011
and 2014. At the balance sheet date, the unlisted floating rate notes are
denominated in USD and their fair values are referenced with quoted market
bid price available on the industry group.

RELM MERFEDZETEANR LTS
P EAEE-

LR BRERIRFBF A R GBIRTRER
BN03IEEMBRITEERFSMO35E (=ZF
THF E)FE MR- TE——FE=Z
—FE-REEH ZEEETERERIUE
TABM MEAFENSETERNIRZT
SRR E ABsrHE -
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23. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES
Deposits =&
Prepayments T FRIA
Other receivables H th & Wk IE

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of the
Group's deposits and prepayments and other receivables approximate to

their fair values.

24. SHORT-TERM LOANS RECEIVABLE

Loans receivable R E R
B RIEER AR

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The Group maintained a defined credit policy in accordance with
respective loan agreements. Loans receivable of the Group at the balance
sheet date amounted to HK$3,203,000 was overdue and allowance was

made.

mEMBHRRHETE
BE—TE\FFoA=+—AUFE
23. 7% TR FIB & H Ath 8
e
K IE
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
16 69,970
447 454
1,376 438
1,839 70,862

ARAEFTRRAEE 2 2E RAMNFKARE
fio A RIR 2 FREE B AP EARE -

24, FEW S EAE W

2008
HK$'000
FExT

3,203

(3,203)

2007
HK$'000
FET

3,203
(3,203)

AEBREREMANzZERBHMEBREEZEE
BR - ANEBREE R 2 EUIE 3,203,000

TEEM AOELBEE
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25. LOAN TO A FELLOW SUBSIDIARY

On 4 November 2008, the Company, as lender, has entered into a loan
agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with Fancy Mark Limited (“Fancy

Mark"), as borrower, and Chinese Estates, as guarantor.

In accordance with the Loan Agreement, the Company would provide a
three-year revolving facility of up to HK$200 million to Fancy Mark. The
Company is entitled, by giving not less than one month’s (or such shorter
period as Fancy Mark may agree) prior notice to Fancy Mark, to demand
full or partial repayment of the amount outstanding. Fancy Mark shall also
repay the aggregate principal amount outstanding under the facility, all
accrued interest thereon and all other amount payable under the Loan
Agreement on the date falling three years from the date of the Loan
Agreement. The loan to Fancy Mark carries an interest rate of HIBOR plus

1% per annum.

For further details, please refer to the Company's circular dated 25
November 2008.

26. TIME DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

The deposits carry interest rate at prevailing bank deposit rates and will
mature within one month. The directors of the Company consider that
the carrying amounts of the time deposits, bank balances and cash at the

balance sheet date approximate to their fair values.

27. ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND
OTHER PAYABLES

There were no trade payables as at 31st December, 2008 and 2007.
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of the
accruals, deposits received and other payables approximate to their fair

values.

28. AMOUNTS DUE TO FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of the
amounts due to fellow subsidiaries at 31 December 2008 approximate to

their fair values.

25. 6 TR XM B AR EX

RZZZNF+—-—AmA XAR(ERE
77) ~ Fancy Mark Limited ([Fancy Mark | {E %
fEHI)REB (ERERA)ITL—HEXRZE
(IrExma#El) -

REEFHH - A QM Fancy Markiz (i —2
#%200,000,000/8 L2 = FHEREHEE °
NA R AR Fancy MarkZ E DR —@A (3
Fancy MarkRIgE R B 2 BB R ) Fxdm - &
SKIE R 2 e # 5 R E&EFKIE - Fancy Mark7h
BRBERBZILBHBSIR=F 2 BEER
BEXMAEMKERZACEE HMAE
MERMBEEMERBRE T L IERNRIE &
FFancy Markz B2 EHEREBRITRZE
HEIIE -

HpE  S2HAR0R_EZNE+T— A
T+ HEBEHZBEK-

26. EHTFERC RITEF MRS

FREERFZRITERMNEGTE IR —EA
NEH - ARREERA/RNGEE A 2 EMFR
ROTBEFLASZRAEEREQRTFERSE -

27. RN ARNFIE  EWIRE K
H fth &~ IR

R-FENGER-BELF+-A=+—8
B 5 ARIE - AR AR B R AN KA
HE - B MRS RN R REEE A
AFEEE -

28. [E S [R Z MIB » RIFRIA

FRSERARER 2 RIBENER - AQF
EERRR_ZTTN\F+-_A=+—B2ZEN
RAMBRARARAZEAEEEAFERS-
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The Company issued an aggregate of HK$180,000,000 HK$ denominated
zero coupon convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds") to Asian
Kingdom Limited (“Asian Kingdom”) and Fame Ascent (collectively
referred to as the “Bondholders”) on 25 October 2007.

Each bond entitled the Bondholders to convert to one ordinary share of
the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.162 subject to adjustment.
Conversion may occur at any time between 25 October 2007 and 24
October 2010. If the Convertible Bonds have not been converted, it will
be redeemed on the date of maturity at the principal amount of the

Convertible Bonds then outstanding.

In February 2008, Fame Ascent entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Mass Rise Limited (“Mass Rise"), an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of Chinese Estates, in which Mass Rise agreed to
purchase 36.51% equity interests of the Company and part of the
Convertible Bonds from Fame Ascent. Following completion of the
transaction, HK$72,000,000 of the Convertible Bonds were held by Asian
Kingdom and HK$108,000,000 of the Convertible Bonds were held by

Mass Rise respectively.

The Convertible Bonds contain two components, liability and equity
elements. The liability component, included in non-current liabilities, was
calculated using a market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible
bond. The remaining balance represented the equity conversion
component, is included in equity named as convertible bonds equity

reserve.

29. AI A& 75

RZZTZELF+AZ+HB - ARAIFET TN
78 7T /% B {2 2 180,000,000/ 7T Z B A # ik f&
% ([AI# Rk &% |) FAsian Kingdom Limited
([Asian Kingdom])RZ & (&8 [EHFFHE
NP

EHFE AR ASRESHLA0.1627 7T (A 7
BIZABEHB—BRAARZEBR -N=F
T+E+A-+HRAE-_ZE—ZTF+A=-1+MWM
B EA ) £ o] B ) AT 3 7 5360 o fim AT IR AR 55 R
WH BZEARRESGNEIE A NLE R
MAREEZ AL REED -

RZZETZNF_R HREAEB HEZ2ENR
BAREABARAR([ER ]I —HEER
B EARERAEZABERLQAFB6.51%
BRAEZRBOATRRES -RHTHKIE
72,000,000/ 7T 2 A] #2 i & %5 F Asian Kingdom
F5F 1M 108,000,000/ T 2 AI R EF AR E

ARH-

AHRRESBEMED  ARERERD - AE
Mo (BRFARBARE) NREETTREES
2SN EGFE - Fer T (AERERES)
FABRABBERRAE R G RS
7 o
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (cont'd)

On 31 October 2008, the Company redeemed the Convertible Bonds
at principal amount of HK$180,000,000 in full at 100% outstanding

principal amount by cash.

At 1 January 2007
Proceeds of issue

Equity component

Liability component at date of issue

Effective interest charged

Liability component at 31 December 2007 and
1 January 2008
Effective interest charged

Redemption during the year

Liability component at 31 December 2008

The effective interest rate on the liability component of the Convertible

Bonds is approximately 8.35%.

29. A& (4E)

RZZEZNF+A=Z+—H AARIUREE
& [0 K4 %8180,000,000/8 7T (B HAEEAR

S8 2T BRRES

HK$'000
FET
R-ZETE+HF—HA—H =
BITATS RIAE 177,806
% 75 4 25 BB (36,297)
BITHAESS 141,509
BEEREF B 2,169
R-ZBEZLF+_A=+—HEK
—EENF-—A—HAGEBD 143,678
BERAE 9,893
FAREM (153,571)

R-ZBZNF+_HA=+—HEEXHS

MRRESEESD 2 ERAX

#) /8.35% °
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30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES/(ASSETS) 0. BEERIBEBE(BE)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) provided/ UTAREERERARBAREFERE
(recognised) by the Group and movements thereon during the current (BRIZEZEEHREEE(BE)REE

and prior reporting years: ER

Fair value
Revaluation of  Accelerated adjustment on

Convertible  investment tax  acquisition of Tax
bonds properties  depreciation  a subsidiary losses Total
-
T8R RENF MERE WEAR BE
&% Eft wE  ATERE K& @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TR TR TR TR

At 1 January 2007 A-ET+E-A-A - 1,260 2,540 - ,077) 1723
Charge to equity for the year BRAERNR (REE) 6,430 - - - - 6,430
Acquisition of a subsidiary KE-fKEAR - 2,949 - 10,450 (62) 13,337
Released on disposal of investment HERENEHER

propertes - (1,260) (2,540) - 2,077 (1,723)
(Credit)/charge to the consolidated income ~ AF B RAMER

statement for the year (FtA) /i (380) 341 - = (39) (78)
At 31 December 2007 and RIEZ+E+-A=+-BR

1 January 2008 “2E\5-A-F 6,050 3,290 - 10450 (101) 19,689
Effect on change of tax rate fxggspe (346) (188) - (597) 6 (1,125)
Credit to the consolidated income FEREEFANAERIA

statement for the year (1,632) (609) - - (373) (2,614)
Redemption of convertible bonds BOA#kES (4,072) - - - - (4,072)
Released on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARKER - - - (9,853) - (9,853)
At 31 December 2008 K-2ENE+-F=+-H - 2493 - - (468) 2,025

At 31 December 2008, the Group has unused tax losses of RZBENFF+ZA=+—H AEETH
HK$670,436,000 (2007: HK$714,004,000) available for offset against EHHEARRENERNABAZHEBER
future profits. A deferred tax asset of approximately HK$468,000 (2007: 670,436,000/ 7T ( ZZ = £ F : 714,004,000
HK$101,000) has been recognised by the Company in respect of W IT) o ARRQ A E #52,836,0008 L (Z T T £
HK$2,836,000 (2007: HK$577,000) tax losses. No deferred tax assets F:577000%87T) 2 BHIEEEERBIELCHIA
have been recognised by the Group in respect of the remaining tax losses EBE ZBELEHREEELR468,0008 T (ZF
of HK$667,600,000 (2007: HK$713,427,000) due to the unpredictability T+ F:101,000%8 7T) - AR AR AT B &%

of future profit streams. All unused tax losses may be carried forward FIFOR - B SR B I 4% K 82 T 2 667,600,000/
indefinitely. T (ZZFZTEF:713,427,000/8 L) 2 T IAE

ERRASECRBAEE - MBERDB ZREAE
B ER A
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31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. g
Number of
ordinary shares Amount
ZEREE HIE
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREEC.01B Ty T @R
Authorised: JETE BN :
At 31 December 2008 and 2007 RZZEZNFR-_ZTTLF
+-—A=+—H 80,000,000,000 800,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRARKAE:
At 1 January 2007 R-ET+F—F—H 794,057,800 7,940
Issue of shares (Note) TR (MYEE) 1,234,197,208 12,342
At 31 December 2007, RZZEZTLF
1 January 2008 and +=ZA=+—8"
31 December 2008 ZEENF-H—HEK
—ETNF
+-—A=+—H 2,028,255,008 20,282

Note:

GE

BEBHA-ZTLENA—BZRERZE  AAA
R-ZZETLFE+ A=+ HAKRER0.162B L2 EE
171,234,197 208 EBAR - FTISRIBEZEREAR
FEAEREBRMES BITZHMRES HEH R
ERZAEROHEERS#Ea-

Pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 1 August 2007, the Company issued
1,234,197,208 ordinary shares at price of HK$0.162 per share on 25 October 2007.
The proceeds were mainly used to finance the methanol project in the PRC. The
new shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing shares in all respect.
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 15 February 2002
(the “2002 Scheme") for the primary purpose of providing incentives to

directors and eligible employees. Details are as set out below:

Pursuant to the terms of the 2002 Scheme which will expire on 14
February 2012, the Company may grant options to directors and full time
employees of the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for ordinary
shares of the Company (the “Share”) at a consideration of HK$10 per
grant. The subscription price for the Shares under the 2002 Scheme shall
be a price determined by the directors of the Company being at least the
higher of the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, or the average closing price
of the Shares stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant. Options
granted are exercisable at any time during a period to be notified by the
board of directors of the Company but limited to a maximum period
of ten years after the date of the options are granted. Options granted

should be accepted within 21 days from date of offer.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the 2002 Scheme and the other schemes
shall not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue at the date on which the
2002 Scheme becomes unconditional (the “Mandate Limit"). Options
lapsed will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the Mandate
Limit. For the avoidance of doubt, the Share underlying the options which
have been cancelled and have not lapsed will be counted as part of the
Mandate Limit.

The Mandate Limit may be refreshed at any time by the approval of the
shareholders in general meeting provided that the total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
2002 Scheme and the other share option schemes must not exceed 10%
of the Shares in issue at the date of such shareholders' approval. For the
avoidance of doubt, options previously granted under the 2002 Scheme
and the other share option schemes (including those outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed in accordance with the 2002 Scheme and the other
share option schemes of the Company or exercised options) will not be

counted for the purpose of calculating the refreshed 10%.

32. WEE A AT 2

RRAFTR—_ZEE-_F_A+HBFEMN—BRE
B8 ([T -F518]) TBEHRE
BEZRAEKES FHHAINOT:
BEEA-_Z——F-_A+NEEHRZ _ZEZ
ZEFE G AAR ARG X105 TR
BRAQRRSEMNBARZESRE2BERSR
LA REBAA R L@ ([BRH5 ) 2 RERE -
ZETFFHEZROHARBEHARRESR
EEREARMRIZE B BAEE RS AR
BERATZEMERRMDNEERL BHAR
BEEBEBHRMEARERMTZBMETE
HE(URSERE) BERLZABRENAK
ARIESSNE 2 B AR BER1TEE - HZ
FHEEARBRERL AR +FEAR FT
B2 RBRERIEZ BRI RN HE
o

RAITEZ _—_TTE_FE REMAEKTRY
ZHERBREMA TETZRALR  T1F
BeaR _—TE_FHEKAEGREERADET
Binz10% ([RERE]) Rt ERERS
B EFEZRBRESSTA-RRER B
EHERAIERE 2 RBEREY R 2B #at
AMERRERBEZ — 810 -

RERBEERAERRASG LI AR TTRERE
oERTEE -ZT ZFAE R HEAMRER
R BIIR B 2 PR R 7] T 317 2 B fp
BE - TSBEANRSG AR EE A 2B %
TR Z10% - BRBRE BER_FTT_F
ArEI R EMRERES SR L 2 RERE (2
BARITE Bl BT -Fir sl RAAR]
HipREE EFE c RBREXDITEZ
REERRE)  REt ERLEH 2 10%E N&EETA -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2008

—ZEZN\FF I, Annual Report 2008

mE R R M A
BE-FE NG+ A=+—AIFE

103

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (cont'd)

The Company may, by the approval of the shareholders in general
meeting, grant options beyond the 10% limit provided that the options
in excess of the 10% limit are granted only to employees specifically

identified by the Company before shareholders’” approval is sought.

Unless approved by the shareholders as set out herein, the total number
of the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each employee (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any twelve month period must not exceed 1% of the Shares
in issue. Where any further grant of options to an employee would result
in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted
and to be granted to such person (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in the twelve month period up to and including
the date of such further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of the
Shares in issue, such further grant must be separately approved by the
shareholders in general meeting with such employee and his associates

abstaining from voting.

However, the overall limit on the number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options granted under all share option schemes of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to

time.

No options were outstanding as at 31 December 2008 and 31 December
2007 under the 2002 Scheme. No options were granted, exercised,

cancelled or lapsed during the two years.

32. BT ()

ARBAAERRRBERERARG LHAEZBERT
RHHBIB10%R 8 2 R AE - HEB10%R
HZRBREIAARTARARS KBRRAHE
RIZIBAZ B8 -

BRIER APl 1S BRI - A - TR
ERA+—EABFARSEERE 2 ZBARE
(BRETERRITERBRE) M ERSE
BT ZBMAE T SBBE HITRMZ21% °
mAEAEEE - FRIBERESEREH
TERBEZE-—SERERBREZAH (ZA
HEREN) IEZEM+ —EARERAEE R
HeRR s MERBERE (BREETR COF
HERITHEZABRE) MO BN EEETZ
Bt AHBBEHTRN21% AE—FK
HRBRE L EERAERRAS LERR ST
HE MERBEMREBREZALIHINEERR

A BAITEARRMBERBRES SR EZ
EHREREM A TRITZRD 2 BEBR )
TRBETR 22 BTN Z230% °

A=+—0 BE-2T 5226
AR 55K 1705 « R PRELEE 79 - A B AR
ST LSS
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33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group acquired the following

subsidiaries:

Minkind Development Limited ~ &EZEER A A
(“Minkind") (r&El)

Remson Investment Limited and Remson Investment

its subsidiary Limited & E it B 2 7]

(the "Remson Group") (IRemson%k @)

NELFEBEREEARAT AFHFAEBEERE
(Inner-Mongolia Yize Mine BER AT
Investment Limited) (TAR&HFE])

(“Inner-Mongolia Yize")

Date of acquisition

Wi B8

31 July 2007
—EFLFLA=T-H

31 July 2007
—ERLFLA=T A

14 November 2007
—ZEt+F+—HF+mA

33. WHEEHT B A A

BE-Z2TLFE+_A=+—ALFE 5%
B A T 2 A

Proportion
of equity
interest Cost of Principal
acquired acquisition activity
ESKREL = e B8 P A TEXH
HK$000
FHT
100% 6,963 Property
investment
MERE
100% (6,921) Property
investment
MERE
100% 64,729 Manufacturing
and sale of
methanol
products
FEREERE

Em
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33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

(a) Acquisition of Minkind
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Minkind as
at the date of acquisition and the corresponding carrying amounts

immediately before the acquisition was as follows:

33, Yghg

(a) WEE

AR (&)

I£3

HEZAHNEERABENKER 2AF

BRR®

SRWEM ZABREENT

Carrying
amounts
before the Fair value
acquisition adjustments Fair value
W B B BR E B AFERAE AFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FH&T FH&T
Investment properties RE Y 7,800 - 7,800
Trade and other receivables B 5 I Hth fE g kI8 3 - 3
Tax prepaid TE AT K 2 - 2
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEMEEH 98 - 98
Trade and other payables B 5 K Hth fE 5 58 (54) - (54)
Loan from an intermediate BHMERARFEER
holding company acquired (914) - (914)
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFHIBEE (1,255) - (1,255)
Net assets acquired S F&E 5,680 = 5,680
Goodwill HE 1,283
Total consideration BRE 6,963
Consideration satisfied by cash AR & X 2K (E 7,849
Acquisition of loan g B RN R A R 2 B
from an intermediate
holding company (914)
Expenses incurred WHEEEER
for the acquisition 28
6,963
Net cash outflow in respect of W R ER SR L IFE
the acquisition of Minkind
Cash consideration paid ENBREKE (7,849)
Cash and cash equivalents FERekBeFEER
acquired 98
Expenses paid for the acquisition 2 7438 £ A (28)
(7,779)
Minkind contributed approximately HK$1,072,000 to the Group's BHE-_ZT+HF+-_A=+—HItEE"

profit for the year ended 31 December 2007.

ZIEAEKREBE R EFI41,072,000%

JT °©
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33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd) B3 WEHMB AR (&)
(b) Acquisition of the Remson Group (b) WiERemsonFE
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the Remson Remsonfk B 2 Al 5 B & Kk B BRI EE
Group as at the date of acquisition and the corresponding carrying BZRAFEERRBZEWEN 2MABERR
amounts immediately before the acquisition was as follows: (ER N
Carrying
amounts
before the Fair value
acquisition adjustments Fair value
W BB A BR E B N ERAE NFEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET FH&T
Investment properties B Y 21,250 - 21,250
Trade and other receivables B 5 I H th fE W R IE 23 - 23
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEEIEE 343 - 343
Trade and other payables B REMENKIE (185) - (185)
Loan from an intermediate BN IERAREER
holding company acquired (28,376) - (28,376)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEE & (1,632) - (1,632)
Net liabilities acquired FrisFarE (8,577) = (8,577)
Goodwill 5 1,656
Total consideration BMRE (6,921)
Consideration satisfied by cash MR & X 2 K(E 21,431
Acquisition of loan KN IERARZER
from an intermediate
holding company (28,376)
Expenses incurred WEELEER
for the acquisition 24
(6,921)
Net cash outflow in respect of I BERemson& B3R & /7t 1
the acquisition of HEE
the Remson Group
Cash consideration paid ENRSRE (21,431)
Cash and cash equivalents FreHRekRE&FEIER
acquired 343
Expenses paid for the acquisition & - Y& & (24)
(21,112)
The Remson Group contributed approximately HK$406,000 to the BE_TTZ+F+_A=+—HIEHF
Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2007. £ ' Remsonfk B /& 7N & B %5 2K & A 4

406,000/% T ©
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33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

(c)

Acquisition of Inner-Mongolia Yize

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Inner-

Mongolia Yize as at the date of acquisition and the corresponding

carrying amounts immediately before the acquisition was as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payment
Deposits and prepayments
Other payables

Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets acquired

Goodwill

Total consideration

Consideration satisfied by cash
Expenses incurred

for the acquisition

Net cash outflow in respect of
the acquisition of
Inner-Mongolia Yize

Cash consideration paid

Expenses paid for the acquisition

33. WWEEMT B R A) (&)
(c) KBAZFZFE
AEHFEZABNEERBBERKE
BZAFEERREZEZREN ZABEERR
(ERCINS
Carrying
amounts
before the Fair value
acquisition adjustments Fair value
W B8 AT BRI B AFEFAE AEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F& T FET
Y BB R 3,322 524 3,846
FENBEERIE 19,326 41,274 60,600
& RIE RIE 5,240 = 5,240
H fh FE SRR (3,497) - (3,497)
BEBIBEE - (10,450) (10,450)
FTiSHEE 24,391 31,348 55,739
EES 8,990
mRE 64,729
KBRS Z N2 RE 62,406
WEEEEHR
2,323
64,729
WEARREFE
WEmEFRE
RN AR (62,406)
BT EE A (2,323)
(64,729)
Bz TS+ F+_-_A=1+—HIEFE"

Inner-Mongolia Yize contributed loss of approximately HK$171,000

to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007.

NELFEAEAREETREEL 171,000

BT e
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33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

Goodwill arose in the acquisitions because the cost of the acquisitions
included a control premium paid for the acquisition. In addition, the
consideration paid for the acquisitions effectively included amounts in
relation to the benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth, future
market development and the assembled workforce. These benefits are
not recognised separately from goodwill as the future economic benefits

arising from them cannot be reliably measured.

If the above acquisitions had been completed on 1 January 2007,
total restated group turnover for the year 2007 would have been
HK$3,575,000 and restated profit for the year 2007 would have been
HK$16,936,000. The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2007, nor is it intended to be a projection of

future results.

33. WEIEB AR (&)

B A U BB AR AN B 4R R Wk BB T S22 PR D M
FWEEERE - N XN ZREREER
BREEEEEMG R R WS R  RKMS
EREEEET MRZFEGEL ZRRE
BERSE TR A A E At RFESYTE
BB ) FIHERR o

WELMBBEER-_"TT+F—A— B %K
AR ST+ FESEINEEEXFELAEER
3,575,000 Tt MAR—ZEZELFEHI &
F 1% 416,936,000/ 7t © B £ & BHE HFH A 2
A P —ErERBRERBR_-_ZEZF—
A—HETHRASEEERRIGZBHARES
IR DN TRIERABERE 2R -
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group entered into a (@ BEZZZINFTZA=T—HBLEFE"
AEEEZFT I -—HEBRE -
B#183,699,000/8 T HEEMBEARE
HE

sale and purchase agreement with Fame Ascent to dispose of its
subsidiaries the Big Winner Group and the shareholder’s loan owed
to the Company, at an aggregate consideration of approximately mERE R EERERARZRRE R
HK$183,699,000. A summary of the effects of the disposal of the

Big Winner Group is as follows:

Net assets disposed of:

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payment

Deposits and prepayments

Bank balances and cash

Other payables

Loan from an intermediate holding
company required

Deferred tax liabilities

Attributable goodwill
Release of translation reserve

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Satisfied by:
Cash
Loan from an intermediate holding company

Expenses incurred

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration
Expenses incurred

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

34, HEMNE R A

EREEZTEREZNT:

AR

2008
HK$'000
FiB T
HEEEFE:
Y WE K& E 5,363
FENHEERE 66,091
&€ RIE RIE 115,546
RITEFERS 11,324
H th & < 5R0E (1,071)
BAENMERABMBER (183,842)
REBIEAE (9,853)
3,558
AR 7,520
R E (14,713)
HEWBARZ K 1,302
(2,333)
XAt
B4 183,699
BN ERAGMBER (183,842)
EEZER (2,190)
(2,333)
HEREEZESRAFHE:
ReNE 183,699
EEZER (2,190)
BERECsRERESEMEEE (11,324)

170,185
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd) 4. HEMBRA (&)
(b) For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group entered into (b)) BE-ZZZTLFIT-_A=T—HILEFE"
a sale and purchase agreement with independent third parties AEBEEFE=FF L -HEE R
to dispose of its subsidiary for a total consideration of HK$7,800. LA #8 (X (87,8007 T (& H T /@ A & o
Summary of the effects of the disposal of the subsidiary is as EZMBRARIZZEMENT
follows:
2007
HK$'000
FHET
Net assets disposed of: HEFEE:
Investment in associates REEERNF 2 IRE =
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary FE AT — I R KBt /8 A BB (25)
(25)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE B ARz s 33
Total consideration HARE 8
Satisfied by: SRR
Cash BRe 8
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEAZRSMAFRE:

Cash consideration BeRE 8
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35. CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Authorised and contracted for:

Development expenses of plants and buildings

36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates defined contribution schemes for all eligible
employees. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The retirement
benefit cost charged to the consolidated income statement represents

contributions payable to those schemes by the Group for the year.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income statement of
HK$58,000 (2007: HK$16,000) after forfeited contribution for HK$7,000
(2007: HK$12,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes
by the Group for the year.

Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes are disclosed in the
“Retirement Benefit Schemes” under "Directors’ Report” section to the

annual report.

R E N8 F R

35. B NAEHE

EERERTLAEH:

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FH&T
— 44,856

=Rl

AEBAMERERREERIATEMR-NGE -
ZEMFEZEERRTARNZESHA X
BUYNRNAKBzEE - RARNERAHEAK

SXMG ARABEEHERAREFANRZE
AHEIEN 2 K

R FRT7,0008 L (ZZEZ £ F: 12,0008

TC) B R ERE W RNk < & A 8% /58,000
BT (T F:16,00087T) HAEER

FRARMZEHEEMN ZHK-

BRABHFAEZFBEREAFRIEETSRE
| -8R RAKBAEE] PE-
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37. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AND BALANCES

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the

Group entered into the following material related party transactions:

(a) Transactions

®

(i)

(i)

The Group paid rent of HK$15,000 (2007: HK$30,000)
for the lease of office premises and management fee of
HK$142,000 (2007: HK$75,000) respectively to fellow
subsidiaries of the Group. The amounts paid were based on
terms agreed by both parties.

The Group paid rent of HK$7,500 (2007: HK$30,000) for the
lease of office premises and management fee of HK$25,000
(2007: HK$162,000) respectively to the Group's controlling
shareholder. The amounts paid were based on terms agreed
by both parties.

The Group acquired two subsidiaries and loans due from the
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group’s controlling
shareholder at a total consideration of HK$29,280,000. The
consideration for the acquisition was fully settled in cash on
31 July 2007.

The Group disposed certain subsidiaries and loan owed
to the Group to the Group's controlling shareholder at
a consideration of approximately HK$183,699,000. The
consideration for disposal was fully paid in cash on 25 July
2008.

The Group entered into a loan agreement in relation to
provision of a three-year revolving facility of up to HK$200
million to a fellow subsidiary — Fancy Mark, Chinese Estates
provides the guarantee which is a continuing guarantee and
will extend to the ultimate balance of sums payable by Fancy
Mark. As at 31 December 2008, the Group has lent Fancy
Mark with the sum of HK$136,000,000 which bearing interest
rate at HIBOR plus 1% per annum. Details as per the circular
of the Company dated 25 November 2008.

The interest receivable of approximately HK$39,000 was
credited into the consolidated income statement for the
current year.

37. BERAEBEBALTR SN

JE AA

=] E/jr(
MRGEMERREMIBLOPIEEEIN KEE
BHETTNIEREAEALR S

(a X5

() AEERAEERRWBAREE
PAETAEESRRAEZHHE
15,000 7t ( =& & £ 4 : 30,000
BIL) REREA142,0008 T (=
TTHF:7500087L) c 2K
BIVRE T HE 2GR E o

AEERAERAEZHFE7,500
B (ZETZF L5 :30,00087T)
K EE B 250008 T (=222 +
£ :162,00087T) TAEE 2 #EK
BRR-BENZRBENIEESTHREZ

Wit g o

& E A 42K 829,280,000/ JT i
BB AR RMEZESKREZ
ME2EWMBAR ZEBKER R
—ETHFL A=+ RAKEARE

ERNEEEETR -

()  AREBELAK(E 183,699,000/ 7T
MASE 2 ERARREES THE
REIREREAEBZER - ZHE
REERZZEZNFELA=Z+HH
LA & BH L AT o

(i) NEBTL—EERBFE m—
il A Z K1 /8 A BlFancy Markig i —
£ & %200,000,000/ 7T 2 = 4F H#
BREFBME HEBRMISEE
1R 2 ER W ZEFancy Marks 48
ERzE&ESg - R_EEN\F+ A
=+—H KN&EEM\Fancy Markf&
136,000,000/ 7T # F | & &/
BRTRERE M EF B 515
B2 ARNFTR _ZEENE+—H
—t+RBREZBEK-

F& I 71 2. #39,000/8 TLE 5F AR F
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37. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AND BALANCES (cont'd)

(a) Transactions (cont’d)
(iv)  On 31 October 2008, the Company had redeemed the zero

v

coupon convertible bonds due 2010 (the "Bonds") with
principal amount of HK$180,000,000 in full at par value by
cash upon the request of the bondholders. The Bonds were
held by a fellow subsidiary of the Group and a substantial
shareholder of the Company prior to the redemption. The

Bonds so redeemed had been cancelled simultaneously.

The effective interest expense on the Bonds of approximately
HK$9,893,000 (2007: HK$2,169,000) was debited into the

consolidated income statement for the current year.

Compensation of key management personnel
Compensation for key management personnel, including
amount paid to the Company's directors and the senior

executives is as follows:

Salaries and other short-term benefits

Further details of directors’ and the senior executives'
emoluments are included in Note 12 to the consolidated

financial statements.

(b) Balances

Details of the balances with related parties at the balance sheet

date are set out in the consolidated balance sheet.

HFe REMEEEF
Retirement benefit scheme contributions iR /Rk4& & 51 21 £ 7%

37.

(a)

EREBHEANATRFG R
/\\EIE% </E>

X5 (4&)
R=ZZZENF+A=+—8"
RARAREBEHEFAEAZER
NRSEEEEZHERNAESEA
180,000,000 TR =& — = F &I
HMeZERES ([EH]) -
REER EHFBHAEE-—RAR
MEBARRARNR —FEBZRRR
B-BEZEHFD RREHE-

()

m@#m

~

EncE
T (=

B2 7 B 7 H #99,893,000
TT 42,169,000
RAFEZFARER AR

) FEEBASZFDH
FEEEABZEHN (BEEMNA
RAIEERSRITHRAB ZFHIE)
E5F

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

1,148 351

39 2

1,187 353
BEERERITRAEZME 2 Hfb
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38. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY 3. ARRICEERER
The Company's balance sheet at the balance sheet dates are as follows: RRARRGEHERAZEEBBRUT
2008 2007
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FERT FAET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries [ OgEE NG = 147,056 155,366
Available-for-sale financial assets ARFEEZEMEE - =
147,056 155,366
Current assets MEEE
Prepayment and other receivables FE A RIE K2
H fth & W5k E 486 868
Loan to a fellow subsidiary f& T — R R B
RNEIZER 136,000 =
Bank balances and cash RITEGFERS 2,255 329,576
138,741 330,444
Current liabilities nEAaRE
Accruals and other payables J& A5 AR A R IR I
H fth & - K8 451 526
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FE{S R Z i B A )
RIE 144 2,118
595 2,644
Net current assets mENE EFRR 138,146 327,800
Total assets less current liabilities BEERIBAMGE 285,202 483,166
Non-current liabilities EREBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEST I B A B FRIB 401 =
Deferred tax liabilities FEFRIEEE - 6,050
Convertible bonds Al A% E 5 - 143,678
401 149,728
Total assets and liabilities EERBERTE 284,801 333,438
Capital and reserves AR R (i 1
Share capital N 20,282 20,282
Share premium and reserves & 0 55 (8 R (& (a) 264,519 313,156
284,801 333,438
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38. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY 38. A AR EERBER
(cont'd) (&)

Note: B &E -

(a) Share premium and reserves (a) ROBEEREE

Convertible

bonds
Share equity Retained
premium reserve profits Total
CIE:Y:
&5 R A
R G aEE ERERE R ST k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHT
The Company PN/NE|
At 1 January 2007 RZZEZ+F—HA—H 24,764 - 77,018 101,782
Shares issued BT % 185,404 = = 185,404
Issue of convertible bonds BT MR ES - 36,297 = 36,297
Deferred tax EIER IR - (6,430) - (6,430)
Dividend paid BEATAR & - - (7,941) (7,941)
Profit for the year AN JE i A = = 4,044 4,044
At 31 December 2007 and RZTBELF
1 January 2008 +ZA=1+—
—ETENF— 210,168 29,867 73,121 313,156
Effect on change of tax rate REBEZ; 3% - 367 - 367
Redemption of convertible i B AT 3R IR (B 5
bonds = (30,234) (404) (30,638)
Loss for the year REFERE - - (18,366) (18,366)
At 31 December 2008 R=ZBBNEF

+=—BA=+—8H 210,168 = 54,351 264,519
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2008 are

as follows:

Name of subsidiary

- NGRS

Grow Wealth Company Ltd
(Business name: Grow
Wealth Property Investment
Limited)

(¥£HB%EH : Grow Wealth
Property Investment
Limited )

G-Prop Services Limited

Legend Power Ltd. (Note)
(P &)

Minkind Development Limited
LEERBRAR

&
Fully paid
Place of Class of share/ share capital/
incorporation/ registered registered
operation capital held capital
AR, FrERSR,/ BRBE
R M E AR &R
Republic of Liberia/ Registered US$1
Hong Kong Ak 17T
Pl BH£RE
BB
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2
BB R 2B
British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$2,000
KBEARES gl 2,000% 7T
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2
BB R 2B

AR ZEEMT

Proportion of
nominal value of
paid-up capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
ENEFABHERE,
ZMEAEECED L
Directly Indirectly
EE %

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

30, TEMERRFIE

R-TRNF+=A=+—B ARALEH

Principal activity

TEXEK

Property investment

NERE

Investment and finance
RE R

Investment holding

RARR

Property investment

NERE
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(cont'd)

Note:  Pursuant to the debt restructuring in July 2003, Koga Limited (a creditor of

the Group previously) was granted a call option to acquire 50% interest in
Legend Power Ltd., within the next 5 years from the date of the completion
(January, 2004) of the transfer of the equity interest in Legend Power
Ltd. from Koga Limited to the Group under the debt restructuring, at a
consideration of the higher of HK$150,000 and 50% of the consolidated
net tangible assets of Legend Power Ltd. when the call option is exercised.
Such option has not been exercised during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affects the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive

length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.

40. JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Details of the Group's jointly controlled entities which are held indirectly

by the Company at 31 December 2008 are as follows:

Form of
Name of jointly business Place of
controlled entity structure incorporation
HEZEFIHEER E3 3 iR ok {1 B 32 3t Bk
Golden Royce Investment  Incorporated Hong Kong
Limited Rl AvA HE
SR EFERAA
Top Grade Assets Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands
ERiiiiAva EEERRES
Upgrade Properties Incorporated British Virgin Islands

Limited Ea1ii VA EBERRES

9. TEBARFE (8)

MisE: BER-_TT=FLAETZEHESR Koga
Limited (N B 2 B EHE A ) B X R 8% -
M Koga LimitedtR #% (& 75 8 48 5T Ak (A1 R 55 [
A i#ELegend Power Ltd.f&iE (ZZTZT MW
F—R) R RFERN - AT E R HARE R A
150,000/ 75k Legend Power Ltd. 2 & B
BEFESON (ARSERE) ZRE BA
Legend Power Ltd.Z 50%# & © %R 4% HitE R
AR FE R RITEE

ERAFISARBEERRIBEZELAREE
BABEEZARRBIMBRR - NRAREZRR
FIEMMBARZERBSRBBILE

B BB M B A R0 S R SR R A ] B
BHEATMREREHES

40. K B2 H #is

RZZZENFT-A=+—RH ARFRIEER
BRASBEAREHIREZFENT

Proportion of nominal

value of issued

share capital held

Frise &7 Principal activity
MR A B & FEEK
40% Dormant
T

50% Dormant
T

50% Dormant

TEmE s
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41. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 47, b T

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with the ETUHRSHEEEMHDEUREAREEZZ7
current year's presentation. A e

42. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF THE 42 e TR & B S R

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for EEEEN_ZETNF=AT—HILERKRE
issue by the Board of Directors on 11 March 2009. TGRS B! -
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Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five

years is as follows:

Results

Turnover

(Loss)/profit before tax for the year
from continuing operations
Income tax credit/(expenses)

(Loss)/profit for the year from
continuing operations

Loss for the year from
discontinued operation

(Loss)/profit for the year

Basic (loss)/eamings per share
(HK cents)

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share
(HK cents)

Assets and liabilities

Total assets

Total liabilities

Total assets and liabilities

£

EES

TERREFELERK L

BB (B1]),8H
FrighiEL,/ (Ax)

TERREFERERK L

(B8),/@H
AERRBERLE
BEXBZBR

KEE (BR) 8N

BREX (BR) /2
(&AL)

gh#Eg (BR)/2H
(&)

BEHAR

BEE
BEfE

BERBEER

AEERBERF2RE BERAGBHEN

T

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEE

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT FHBL FHEL FHBT
6,790 2,812 3,512 4,698 9,362
(5,731) 15,297 5511 9,216 10,204
2,690 1,334 (692) (2,124) 306
(3,041) 16,631 4,819 7,092 10,510
(1,813) (1,438) = - =
(4,854) 15,193 4,819 7,092 10,510
(0.24) 1.49 0.61 0.91 1.52
(0.24) 1.39 0.61 0.91 1.52
At 31 December
W+=-A=t+—H
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHT FAEL FEL FHT
301,330 532,342 133,813 136,107 126,205
(3.952)  (166,683) (5,137) (4,309) (27,291)
297,378 365,659 128,676 131,798 98,914
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Particulars of the Group's properties, all of which are wholly-owned, as at

31 December 2008 are as follows:

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT

AEER-_ZEZEN\F+_A=+—HB2E%HA
ZOMEFBWT

HIEIRBEME
Category of
Location Lot number the lease term Usage
1t BE 1y B 4R 5% HEE R k=3
1. 25 car parking spaces on Certain parts or shares of Long Parking
various floors and 5 adjoining and in the Remaining Portion of & H Bfi
spaces at the 2nd and 4th floors Inland Lot No. 2818
of the Bank of East Asia The Remaining Portion of
Harbour View Centre, Section D of Inland Lot No. 2818
No. 56 Gloucester Road, The Remaining Portion of Section F
Wanchai, Hong Kong of Inland Lot No. 2817 and
BB EFE T ESEH Section M of Inland Lot No. 2817
RERITEED D MR 28185 BRER 2
BI[E 2 25 E AL & =T
218 412 7 S{E M A8 22 Y A3 BR 55281858 DER B4 R
M ER 552817 3R FER BRERIA I
M ER 828175 MER
2. 6 car parking spaces and Certain parts or shares of Long Parking
carport basement of and in Sections A and B and K H Bfi

No. 9 Queen's Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong
BEREFRERANERNR
6lABE N M3 E R E

the Remaining Portion of

Section C and the Remaining Portion
of Marine Lot No. 10T,

the Remaining Portion of

Section A of Marine Lot No. 102,
Section C of Marine Lot No. 103 and
the Remaining Portion of

Inland Lot No. 514

B R E 10155 BRER RAER 2
BERRCEREAR 2B TR M th % -
B R E 1025 AR BRER -

B R E 1035 CRRIA K

M ER 51455 A R
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